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GROUP ESULTS i e
199142 LALCRR
Tumover Lm 5,224 4,437
Operating surplus im 344 H
Profie befare taxaton Am 285 i
Profis after sanaton Fas 255 95
Capital and reserves Lnt 1,604 L8
Earmings per shate = basig P 35.3 132
= fully diluted I 30 174
Dhvidends per share » 10.18 bR &)

TRAFFIC
Avalable tonne kilometres m 13,818 13,151
Revenue tonne kilometres T 9,111 %079
Passengers carried oo 25,422 25,587
Cargo cacried (tonnes) woo 502 S0
I Crverall load factor (seheduled servives) % 65.6 aa.8

BMPLOYEES AND PRODUCTIVITY

Average number of empley sy feee Note below 50,409 54,427
Avallable tonne killomeues per employee o0 274.1 245.3
: IRevenue tonne kilometees per cnployee o0 180.7 165.0

Newe Fhe stual number vf emplopees an the CGrougr ar § Apnt 1992wy 48,453 i1 Apnl 1991 S3.010
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CHAIRMAN'S
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STATEMENT

E BEGAN ray annual report to you a year ago by desunbung
the preceding 12 months as among the most volanfe in the
Tstory of our industy, Tines snce then have been livte, of
any, easter. The effects of the GuIl war persisted well into the
finanaal year ended 31 March 1992,

I fage, 1991 has been descnbed a4 the wose difficule year
snce records began LCACY, the Intemnational Civil Aviation
Orgamsation, has reported the fiest ove e anneal fll in
mtematzonal scheduled passenger wnafiic, down overall by
six per cent, with 1ATA, the tndustry association, estimating
vambined fosses on mternanonal scheduled senvices alove of
same $4 nllon,

Apamst this background, 1ok we nay firly deseribe
Beitnli Atrways performance 3¢ Inghly creditable,

Profits are up 119 per cent o £285 mallion at the pre-tax
level and tarnaver up sx per cent, leading the Board 1o
reconunend a final dividend o' 7.24 pence a sharg, agunst the
6415 pertue 1 each of the past two years. This would give
divadends for the full year of 10 18 pene a share, a rse of

15 per cent,

To accomplish tins, your company had 1o ¢all upon its
comuderable store of talent, shall, imgenmty and shicer
deterrmimation as never belre, The World's Biggese Offer,
our imagmanve and bold promotinn, wheh took off on

23 Apaol lasg year, yompstarted the world cravel market afier
the slump caused by the Gulf war Besides creating sinmense
goodwill towards Braush Arrways, this thang promoton
aterai ved publiciy worth tens of milhons of pounds. More
smportantly, it ensured that we recovered from the downturn
faster than our avals, Meanwbile we have had to contend
with cconomic recesyon i our man markets, which has
meant that a retums 0 more normal trading conditions has not
happened as spetbidy as we would have wished

As expected, we have abo ficed mureasingly tough compeution,
partee ulardy at our Feathrow home base, Pollowing changes
i the Governmene®s taflic dstnbution rles controllng
access to the airport, the number of wamens compenng, with
us there bast sunmmee wreased by 17, w 87, They include
some of the largest and most competitive ahines i the

warld Wo have responded strongly, with a whole host off
marketing inttzatives and product enhancements, The result
has been an ingrease 1 our market share at London

Within the company, we have acted energetically an the past
12 qeanths co reduce our costs, wath the support of pur
employees and trade unions. The contraction st the size of
vtir workforce has been aclueved through sty retarement,
valuntary severance and the dsposal of cerain acavitios, with
A Lopsequent wierease 1w producuvity of almost 12 per cent.

We have made some important + hanges i the stmeuee of
our busmess I arder to Tibetate resourees for the
development of the auline, we okl the business fornedy

Py doeay o M Annoiaf Rapost U Awcungy 199142

carned on by Bateh Arvays Bogue Overliad Lineted 19a
subsidrary company of General Elecine Conpany of the
USA. We helieve that the new owners, as engine
manufactarers, will be able to wmvest further esources in the
developent of this excellent business, while allovang s to
get on with what we o best. We also contracted ot one
praperty mamtenance and parts of our secunty fus ons

We have carried our in-depth reviews of our operanons 3
Gatwick and in the UK regions, 1o ensure that thase acnvatics
have the best opportunities to reach adequate levels of
prafitabiliy.

We excerded our initial targeted savings of £200 natlon w
the imtal phase of our theee-year Gap Closure programme by
A,65 malhon. We are amung to tnm a tuscher S150 midhion
froms our costs in the 199293 financial year,

What we shall nor trimy, however, 1 the quahty of our
cusiomier service, In our derennmnanon to bwkd on this
principal undedying sirength of British Ainways, we recently
Taunched "“Winnimg for Customers”, the atest and most
eXtensive an our seres of customer service development
untiaves, Every employee wall take part in its corporate
event, called "Winners”. Qur intention is that thys programme
should g us as much of 2 compentve edge in the 1960 as
dud onr ongmal “Putag People Firt™ imtianve in che 1980

"There has been a great deal of wedia specunon in the past
year regarching Briush Asrways' glabalisanon plans Althaugh
wo renint cometted to the coiscepe of 4 global ardine, and
while we beheve onr long-tezm future may be bound up with
worldwide ailiances, we are still m a position of stremygh which
many would envy, We will not act in haste and repent at
lewsure. Findng the right partner remans nght on our agenda,
but there 1s much else besides Unul the nght deal presents
usell; we will contmue to operate a nghly successfil, profitable
busmess achicving excepronal levels of customer sausfarnon.

Growth prospects for this mdustey rensim spund. Brosh
Arways 1s 1 a good postion to take advantage of the
opportunities afforded by the bberalisation of the udusiry,
provided che plaving fick? e level and “competstion™ 1 not
musnterpreted to mean “substituzion”, We are enconraged by
the support of the UK's newly-elected Government for
opening the skies of Furope and for exanuning the role of
state subsidies enjoyed by some contiental carmers =
particulady as the United Kingdom holds the prevsdency of
the Buropean Conunumty i the six months leadimg up
1993 and the dawning of the single Buropean market,

We now have our own fivst plactorm on the contment, wath

the establishment of the vew Gennan arlie Dentsebe BA, 1
which we hold 2 49 per cent stake, We are abo progressing the
develapment of Air Rassia, working wath onr parmoers in Russi,

The Compay's Dhreetors have for many years benefired from
the counsel of Robert Ayling, o bis capaciry as Company
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Secretry; Legal Parector amd Director of 1 winan Resources.
Fellowing Ins appointment as Director of Marketing and
Operations, we were pleased 1o welcome him in Deegmber as
a fidl member of the Board.

Dritssh Airways 15 now finnly on ts fighipach 16 recavery after
the turbulence caused by the Guif confhier and recession in
many countrigs, We have demonstrated our ability to manage
this business effecuvely during the most severe downtum it has
expenienced, In doing so, we have earned the admiration off
the industry.

For this, the employees of your Company deserve n
substannal vore of thanks, reflected by my Board's decision two

BOARD MEMBERS
AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

merease the Jevel of their profit shaog bonus from the
formumlta dzven 1.4 weeks to a full swa weeks' base pay.
Thew contnbution w a trving, often unserthing and Constaathy
challengging 12 months cannot be uverstatesd.

Nonetheless, they and 1 are oaly too well aware that there 1
stull much to ackicve if we are to accomplish our mission of
becaming the undinputed best and raost succesit]) rompany
in the industry = to whiclt we remajo conuntred,

Moy

Lord King of Wartnaby Clainnan

BOARD MEMBERS

Lord King of Wartnaby (74) Chaiman

Chairman snce 1981, Chatrman, Babeock International LG
smee 1972, Direceor, Daily Telegraph ple, (D)

Sir Colin Marshall (38) Deputy Clainnan and Chief Lxeative
Chiref Executive since 1983, Director, Grnd Metopolitan
PLCC IBM United Kingdom Holdings Lumted, Midland
Group ple and Brawsh Tourt Authoruy, (1B)

Sir Michael Angus (62} Deputy Chairman and Chaman of
the Awdi amd Renneration: Conomitiees

Deputy Charrmaa, Whatbread PLC and Naoonat
Westmirster Hank PLC, Dhrector, Thorn EM] ple,
President, Confederation of Bntsh Industey. (A, C)

Robert Ayling (45) Ducaor of Marketing and Operationy
Joned the Bocrd of Britsh Arways i December 1991 afier
his ap.posntment as [Director of Marketing and Opetanons 1n
heptember, fomed the arhne as Legal Director m 1983 and
subsequently took on the duves of Company Sceretary and,
later, Director of Human Resources Formerly Under
Secretaey at the Deparunent of Trade

Derck Stevens §53) Chief' f suanaal Officer

Chiel Fananaal Officer smce 1989 Formerly Tnance
hrector, ‘TSH Group ple,

Cuptain Colin Barnes {38) Chainnan of the Aw Sqfery Review
Commriter

Jusied the Board of Baush Airways i 1991 afier 36 years
Bymng with the airdie as a pilot, the Jase ten as Clael Pilot and
the fiml five as Drector of Fhghe Crew, {A, 1)

Miclael Davies (57)

Chairmnan, Calor Group PLC, Whltshser PLC and Merkins
Foads PLC . Deputy CGhasrman, 'TT Group Pl (A, B, C)

Sir Francis Kennedy XCMG CBE (66) Speaal Adviser 10
Chiensans and Boaed

iliplamauc Serviee, 190 £-86, Director, Fluor Daiiel Corp.
and Smith and Nephew ple, (B)

The Hon Charles H, Price 11 (51}

Formeer United States Ambassador to the UK, Chaimun,
Mercanule Bank of Kausas Cuy. Ihirector, Hamson Ve,
Texaco Ine, Sprint Corporation and New York ‘Times
Company Tne. {A, B, ©)

Lord White of Hull KBE (69}

Chairman, Hanson Industrics, (A, G)

The leters m brackets mdicate membership of the following
comnuttees of the Board:

{A) Audit Committee, (B) Air Safery Review Committes,
(¢ Remumeration Conimittee

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Davad Bumade (40) Director of Publy Affairs

At Guamenng (57} Lirectar of Enaineering

Ur Michael Davies (34) Pircctor of Healdl Serviirs

Tutry Galbrasth {33) 7 reasnrer

avad Halmes (57) Durector of Govertiment und Industry Affanes
Dyawad Hlyde (35) Director of Safery, Seamty amd the Busarstimias
Captan Jock Lowe (48) Dirator of Flight Crew

Chve Mason (48) Dinector or Pup hasing and Supplys

Roger Maynard (49) Dircetor of Gorporate Strateqy

Gal Redwood {43) Company Scervtary

Meevyn Walker (33) Legal Director

Johre Watson (48} Durector of Hiuman Resrurces and Juformatron
Management
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DIRECTORS?
REPFORT

The Duzecton have pleasure m presenting these Report and Accounts  INVESTMENTS

ke the year etadsd 31 Marels 1992. The accounts sre set ot on Pages
K10 30

PRINCIPAL ACTTVITIES

The mam actviues of Botuh Airways Ple and s substdiary
uridertskings sre the operanon of intemalonal and domestie
schieduled and charcer air secvices for the camiage of passengers,
freight and wasl and the provinen of anailliary services,

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

Prafit afier taxauion, aunbutable to members of Brush Ainways Ple,
amounted to £395 aulhon, against £95 nullion in the previous year,
The Board recommends a final davidenc ' 7.24p per ehars, gving
wtak dividend for the year of HL18p per 1hare compared 1o 8.85p
the previoms year, anncrease of 15 per el The final dividend will
be pard on 24 July 1992 to sharcholders myistered on 12 June 1992
After provading £74 muthion for dividends, the retained profit for the
year amounted w0 £321 nulbon,

ARCRAFT QRIIERS

Orders were placed an the year w 31 Mageit 1992 for 15 Baemg 777s
and spares, with options on a further 15 aeeraft,

Opticns on 24 Boaing 747-400: smw taken out dunng the year,

(W the wtal opuions, 18 were converted mio funzee deliventes,

No funther options were taken out duvieg the yrar on Vozing
TO7-300s but six were converted into finure defivencs.

OF the existmg eight ophions for Britsh Aerospace AT, five were
rorwened dunag, e year into firm orders and au addimona) three
opnons were placed for the arcrafk.

‘The capital value of new orders and ovders converted from options 1
L300 aullion.

AIRCRAFT FLEET CHANGES

Three Uoemgs 747401, cight Bocng T67-M1is, two Boang
737200y, 13 Docing 737-40{k and (our BAc ATEs were delivered 10
the anshne These arreraft had a capatal value of £825 nullion

A further fAe AT and two HS 7485 are 1 service on short-term
operating leases

Fottr HS T48s and three BAC 12113 {the BAC [«115 h-ving been stood
duvay ae 3 March J291) were sold dutsng the year; 2 Lirther five FIS
T8 and five Bowing 737-2ix have been retumed o the lessors,
Two Boewg 757200, two Boeing 132-200s and two Lockheed
TriSear 2inm were leased (o other arlines. A fucther seven BAC 1-113
aud five Lodkhiced Tnbear 200 were stood down in the year and the
edtry ito serviee of one Boemg To7- Y01 was d-ferred unul Apnl 1992.

FINANCIMNG

Foue Bocwmg 767-34k, fiwr Boeing $37-401s, and foue BAe AT
were soquire S umder vartous extendible eperatmg ltases and two
MeDonnell Pouglas DCI0-3s were sold and feaged back on
uperanng leases, inall caes with 3 minunum lease erm of
spproximately five years, A further BAe ATP aireraft hat been
obtaiacd on a shurt-tent operaung lease,

Twe Boemyg T67=300, vwo Boeing 7474008 and three Bocmyg
17adtnls were acqquired under vartous Japanase leveraged leascs, thus
provubing the ndue wike attrauve cross-border Jute pun hiase
finans ¢ Olne Boeag Met-YH) arerali delivered in March 1992 was
smlarlv finaticed i April 1992,

5w Boeray 7374008 wire purchased outagh, financed out of
extting faalings by 18-y ear Joans secsaed o the arrerafl Onie Boving
T M aincraft acquired in March 1992 1 expected to be snmlacly
fmanced. One Yocang 717400 airciadt, financed on a 15-year
mongge loan, and two Boemg 757-2008 were also purchased
ournght In addion, a Noeing 747-208) siremlt previondy on finance
tease was purchased ournght,

Six Boewng 757-2008 have changed from openating lease o Anaae
Jease arrangemenns following i extenuon of the onginal Jease penads,

In June 199 Brush Aeways Finance BY, as iemer, drew down the
proceeds of an unsecured USS150 nnlhion povate placement of
CGuatapteed Floating Rate Notes due 1996 which sere guarantecd by
Bestest Areways Plc The procecds were Inancd to Beatah Abrways Pl

On 13 March 1992, Dritssh Aarwavs, together with a comsortm of
subs dunes of German banks, acquired the Gennan segons] andie
Dela A Regronalllugvetkehe Gmb) L, Brssh Awrwayz” shace of the
ety is 49 per ceps Simce the end of the year, the company has
been rename 3 Devtsche BA Lufifabregesellichatt mib# and,
addsion to wts exisung 19 German domestic and intemational joutes,
it walt expand 10 operate a nugmber of nther toutes

On 2 Decembe 1991, Bruish Atrvwiays sold the engine averhau}
business previowsly carried on by Brtish Airviays Figane Overhanl
Linnted 10 a sulsichary company of General Llettrc Company of the
United States, which gave nise ta an extzaordinary protic of £140
miffton after tax,

On 30 March 1992, Dritsh Airways disposed of s 50 per ceny
holding 1 Bratsh Caledoman Fhghe Traming Linuted.

British Atrways and 1ts pariners s JRussia are contumung their joint
eflons to esabluh Ax o, a newly fonned intemanonal aimne
based at Mescow's Domodedoyo airport.

PROPERTY VALUATION

Richard Elliy, Chartered Surveyors, valued the Group®s properies it
31 March 1991 11 accordance with the statements of asset vatuation
practice and.guidance notes of the Royal lnsiution of Chartered
Surveyors The value of'the Group's propetnies wuas approximately £250
sulhon in execss of the net book vatue disclosed an tie Group balince
sheetat 31 March 1991, In the oprmon of the Directors, and as
confimued by Wichard Ells, the current value of the Groop's propenies
mcluded m that valuauon has not matenally changed dunng the year.

In view of the specialined nature of many of the Group's operuonal
properies, A sipflcam propoction of the total valation s on the
bans of depreciated replagensent cost, the balanse besng on an open
market exustingause bass,

ROUTLES

Dunng the year, Brinsh Auways introduced services to Fukuoka,
Japan, in July 1991 ang !karta, Indonesa, m March 1992 Services
to Kuwant were resumed m joae 1991 followmng the cessanon of
hostihues 1 the Gulf, with Tehran being re-titroduced m July 1993
A new shorthaul destmanon Bergamo, taly, wis mtroduced sn Apnl
1991, Suheduled services to Nagoya, Japan, and Leipzig, Gennany;,
were mereduced i Apnl 3992,

As a result of requizements unpescd by the gavernment of the Federal
epublic at Gennany, flights linksng Berlin with Dremen, Hanovar,
Nuremburg, Munstee and Syle were witlidrawn mn Autumn 1993
Services to Tampa in the USA were discontinued 1 May 1992

OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

As expecied, competitive pressures have snereased sigmificandy
follovang changes 1t the taffic dotnbubon nides aliee e 20ces o
more airlines at Heathrow and the advemt o Amence 4 tines and
United Authines, replacng TWA and Pan Am, on i, 7 routen
from Heathraw, With 17 other aidines aleo Jasnchie, -+ . satour
bortie base hast sutnruer, this toak e mumber ol aime: . ¢ vatieyg ag
the airport to 87 Despite ese wovzlopmionts, ous market Ware oy
Londen has invreascd.

We have met these new challenges by Lannehing an neprescdonto]
numnber ofmarketng enpagns to wemubie and tetam teaf®e, Jed,
the early pare of the year. by The "Xndd's thggess Onfze

Aur Miles Lautudes, a frequend 11 .o progranune annow cd at g,
beginmng of the year for resdents of the TE was combaned wirke /b,
ichannched Execunive Club Thi wis cosdy followed b a sunidar
programine for our US customers

We mcoduced 3 10 medbon package of improventents o the
acline's ground services on Nunh Athone routes and mor
mprovesnents ko our First Ulass and Clab Lumope brands

At Binsungham, Wrssh Airwaya passenger tperatons have moved
intu the newly opensl Lurabub, 1 which the Campany w2
21 per Cont parines.
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A rompletely new gont Bntish Arways/Disess Club Carpeate Cand
has been introdai ed o helpyour bunness customens marage thar
wave] spend

Purther hberalisaunn in Enrope will come with the smgle European
nurket n 1993 Brush Airways s well flced to ke advantage of
the opportunites this aflonds

Botsh Awways has welcomed the announcement by BAA ple thatit
1 heginng the consulanve phase pror w applying for planmng
permpnon w binld 4 Gl passenger termnal & Heathrow, o be
opened eady 1 the next decade, and large enough to accommodate
the adine's entite operatons at the arpore. Brush Asrways has long
urged such 3 develapinent,

DIRECTORS

Robart Aylig, Director of Markeung and Operanans, was appointed
w the Board on 16 December 199)

The Pirectoni reanng by rotauon are Sir Midhael Angus and the
Hon, Chades H. Pace 11, who beg elipible, offer themselves for
re=<lection at the anmual general mecting, Newher of these dwectons
has 3 serviee contzacs with the Company Twbert Ayling, having been
appuinted to the Boatd dunng the year, offers ingel{ for election at
the annual peneral meetmg, Mr Ayhing has 2 service conract
rernnnable on two years notiee from the Company.

‘The names and detadls of the Murectors are set out on Page 3 and thear
share mterests are duwclosed won Page 9

LIABILITY INSURANCE

Dowsh Ainways holds a Directon® and Officen’ habulity msurance policy.

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

§

The Company contmued to encourage leamwork and

comuntm atien between all of its employees i the management of
the buuness dunng the vear, Consultation contnues to take place
through manageinenr and trade tmon conamttees at varying lovels
withim the Company, where a wide runge of business and
employinent ssues ate dscuued

The Company operates an employee sigestion scheme, «atled
Dramwaves, which acknowledges enginal sworkable supgewsons with
rewards aanging frony L1 to £ 10,000 Awards totalhng mere than
L200,000 were shared by employees for sonte 1,800 wdeas sthmated
last year The benclit of these suggestions to the Company 1
cammated at £2 mullion per annum

“Bntish Arrays News *, which provides up-to-date wivennanon to
emplovees on what 15 Juppeninge i tie Group, 14 ssued free each
week Furthermere. a daly “headhines” verson of the newspaper s
provided on the auline’s computer natworks, gving coiployees
around the wirld mstant accen w informavion.

In Apni {942, e Company embarked on 2 majot ¢ orporate

cnomer serviue development mitiauve, omder the banner “Winning

tor Crstonien®™ bs main platform 15 2 trasung evenr, “Winners”,

which will run cach weekday Tor nearly two yeans unuf every

employee has had an opportutity to take part ks maim theme isthe

¥itat cole that every individual has in ensuring sjtunun Costormer
rerention Alongude this event, all 7,500 managers, superviors,

captans and wabim service doreseon wall accend a two-day "Manping ¢
Wnnan® programme

The batter in particulac i basdt heavly on the results of' an eniployee
wput survey Laened outin November, in winchoall eimployees were
nvited to gave thear views on the Campany and mtamgement syle.

Under the rules of the Profic Shanng Share Sclieme, every chigible
eniplovyee wall be enutded ro parucipate s the Scheme s respect of
profit share of tvo weeks baue pay, wineh tan B¢ used by the
Trustees of the Schene w acquire shates t be spproprared ta the
parttcapants and held i trust wr accordance wath the Scheme The
Board satends co make an equarvalent Cash paymasent to those eligible
employees not wishimy or atle to paraapate i the Schewe,

The Savinge [elated Share ¢Ipuan Schormie has nosw been operated
twn e Engfovess 2ic able to save amouns of between L and £ 1)

Bamh a1V Anwnd Repant & Acennte [995 42

a month, and siter e years have the opron of pushaung shazes
with the money saved at the prescnbed pace o 161 L the lizs
ppesation and 1385 fue the second operation, or have the moncy
refanded with amrcrest The fimt matuaty of the Sckemne wll o, cue
on { June 1942

PENSIONS

Following e actuanal valuations of the Airways Peasion Schemes a
3 Maech 1989, the Toustees of the Schemes apreed 1o imprned
benelits for snembers sulk i employment, including bonging the
nomnl retreanent age L3y men and women nto Ime and o a
teducuon of contribunons made by the Company These hanges
took ¢ffect dunng 198490,

A trnenmaal ac tuanal valuation of the Schomes wall be undertaken as o
31 March 1992,

EQUAL OPPOIRTUNITY

Bruwsh Ajrwsys’ policy 18 to promote cqual opportunicy in
erployment, regandless of gender, race, colour or disalyhiry, subject
only o eapabiliey and suicabritty for the task 1w question and the
recunements of law, As part of the "Opporumity 2000 ymtanve,
benthmarky are beny set agamnst wingh 1o measure the mamber of
women employed atall levels m the Company. Wherever possible,
coployers who become disabled during enaploviment are provided
with an alternative job that makes fill use of thesr capatihiuies

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL CONTRIBUTINNS

Charitable donanons made by the Group duning the year amounted
0 SAOLIRY {1991 497,000}, of which the Jargest were to

Age Concern England and the Cancer Reliel MacMallan Fund

Ne polincal comtnbucrons were made dunng the year {1991 £4D,000
pad to the Conservative Party),

ALLOTMENT OF SHARES

A special reolution to reacw the exsting authonty of the Piseuons
to allot shares under Artde 11(B) of the Campany's Articles of
Assaciation s contamed i the Notce of annnal generad meeung.

The London Stock Exchangs no longer requares the consent of
sharcholders of the Company to each speeific ssue of shares lor cash
sade other than to existing tharcholders t proportion to ther
exuting sharcholdmy, provided such sharcholders have gven the
necessary gesteral awhanty.

SUHAREHOLDERS = NON-UK NATIONALS

At 31 March 1992, 41 per cont ofordmary shares were held by
noe-UK pavonals, compared with 39 per cone at 31 March 1991
Having regard to all relevanic Diceon, wnduding the fict that there are
10 large mterests of stngle or asoaued non~-UK nationals and, m the
abtence of unforercen developments, the Iirectors do pot ap present
expect (but without linnning their freedom to act) to seck ta exeruse
thew powens 1o cosindt non«UK share awnership

A specnal resolution to amend the Company's Aricles of Assomitan,
to eitable the Derectors rather thaa the See ey of Stare for
Tramport tw anplement provinons w tesinct share ownerdup s the
Company by non-UK nanonals, i contaned i the Nouce of annual
goneral meenng

LOSE GOMPANY STATUS

Tlie Company 15 not 2 close uompany wathin the mcaning 1 the
Incorne and Corporatton Taxee Ant J9RB anid this postion has pot
changed since the end of the financal year

AUDITORS

The zudter, oot & Young, have widnated their Wthugness w
continue m oflice and a resoluttaa proposing thes reagpomtment and
authonsng the Dirce tors to determine ther remuneration will be
peojuned at the anmal genenal meeting,

Un behalt of the Bossd
G P Redwood Seedtey
18 May 1942




FINANCLAL REVILW
OF THE YHAR

The pre-tax profic f the year ended 31 March 1992 was £285 mudlion, up 119.2 per cont, 2 ngmficant revovery from the vambimed effeus ot
euotiomc tecession ad the Guil conflice lae ygar.

Profit afier tax was £255 million, equivalent to carningy of 35.3p per share compared to 13.2p Last year On a fully dituved basss, carmngs por share
were 3L.0p.

In December 1991, the sabe of the business previousty ¢amed on by Dratish Aitways Engine Quethau) Linuted gave nse to an eatraordinary poofit
af £140 nmulhon after tax.

Net cash flow from operating acuvicies tatalied £591 milion, wp £295 nulhon on the previous year, This fully covered finnaiang charges and
speading on lixed wssets and mvestments, net of disposals, Jeaving an overall net cash mflow including increases m shor-term baok deposits of
A:390 malhon, compared with an owtflow of £311 nullron Last year,

This result reflects sustamed efforts dunng a dafficutt trading year to keep down costs and defer non-essentsal vapital expenditure

Barzowings new of cash batances ag 31 March amounted @ £1,172 mllion, down 053 millien on the previous year whereas caputal and evserves,
mdudimg Converuble Capital Bouds grew by £326 nuthon, This cuded L1 amllion subscnbed for new share capital by ensployees upon the
exercise of stock opnions. The resabtant net debe @ tatal eapital eatio was 42 per cent, a seven pont improvement over the year

For the 12 months ended 31 March 1992 Group tumover increased by 5.8 pee cont from £4,937 million 10 £5,224 milhon Group expendiure
increased by 2 3 per cenc from £4,770 million to £4,880 mithon.

Employee costa rose by 3.8 per cent reflecting the tmpact of the United Kingdom pay settlements of 11,2 per cent from | January 1991 and {our
per cent for 1992, backdated 1o | November 1991, offict by an average reduction in employees of 7.4 per cent, In addiron provision has been
} unde this year foe payment of an employee profit shanng bonus,

Fuel and ol costs fell by 12.9 per cent. Average WSS fisel prices paid during; the year came down by 21,0 per cent to 709 US conts per US gallon
and with improved fuel efficiency, partly offiet by exchange rate differencen, costs wexe £77 nillion lower than Jast year Awrcrafl operating lease
costs and deprecianion decreased by 4.5 per cont, mainly throupgh Jower interest rates on lease costs, Landung fecs and en route charges were up by
1341 per cent prnopally due to large mereases i prices fiom Burocontrol and higher aiport passenger fees,

Engincerin: w2+ necraft costs fell by £23 million, 8.1 per vent down on last year, largely as a comequence olimprovements in
subcoutra abing charges, catenng and other operating costs mereased by 8.4 per ceat, due 1o umproved customer services, security and
HICTERSES 13- -t raffic handling costs,

"The higher sclling costs reflect mepeased commison paid 1o travel agent and more advertising. Expenditure on accommodation, ground
i equipment and currency differences remained i line with last year,

"The geographtcal analyus of Gronp wmover and operating surplus, which his been re-stated and brought 1h Inie with our vperatonal
managentent strugtuge, shows significzut improvement on most routes,

Europedn routes have returned to profitabiliy, despue difficulk tradiyg condiions in the UK and 2 sgnidicant reversat tn the Intermal German
Services The Amencas’ twmover and opetating surplus remained ¢lose o last year's levels reflecuing the increased compenition on North Adanbe
routes and the recewon

Afnca, Muddle Eot and Indiag sub-conunent routes eared an operatng surphis of £119 nulhon, up from £13 wrulliost Jast year, fargely reflecting
recovery from the deamatic effects ofthe Gulf war Sunlacly, the Far East and Australasia operaung results have mure than doubled

Full year revenue tonne kifometres mereased by 1.5 per cent. A total of 25,424,000 passengen were ¢armed on schsduled and charter senvaces,

a decresse of £ 6 per cent, Cargo tonne kilometees weee up by 19 per cent. represtinng the carriage of 502,000 wnnes of cargo.

Revenue pasenger kilometres on scheduled services increased by L8 prer cont with available seat kilomnetres up by 14 per cent, giving a passenges
foad factor of 70 2 per cent, up nargnatly on lat year.

REPQORT OF THE AUDITORS TO
THE MEMEERS OF BRITISH AIRWAYS Ple

We bave audited the accounts on Pages 8ty 300 aceordance with Andiingg Standaeds,

tn gigr opsminn the accouns gve s ve aad far view of the state ofaffun of the Company and of the Group at 31 March 1992 and of the profu

Zash flovs of ghe Group Jor the yrar then emded and have been praperly preparad i accordance with the Compames Aq 1985

st & Young
Charteed SAciimtants
Rigistaed Audetor
London

14 May 1922

inshy Twsrys M Dimueed Wepot £ Acimes 199193 t
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GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCQUNT

kirthe oo orded 3 Mok 1999

frinp
£ mithn Nk 1992 "o
TURNOVER 2 5,224 A, 937
ot of sales Ja {2,777 4.65%;
Gross profit 447 283
Administrative expenses 3a (103) (117}
. o QPERATING SURPLUS 2b6:3b 344 167
o Qcher income and cliarget ] 29 112
MNet fnterest payable 5 (88) 29)
PROFT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEM 285 2350
Exceptional item 6 (120)
PROFT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION 285 134
Taxation 7 (30} . {35
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER TAXATION ) 255 )
Extraordinary item . 8a 140
PROFBIT FOR THE YEAR 395 95
Dividends paid and praposed g (74) {64}
RETAINED PROFIT/FOR THE YEAR 21 321 a1
Earnngs per share : 1
- Basiz ‘ 35.3p 13.2p
- Fully diluted 3L.0p A.dp
Dividends per share g 10.18p 8.85
Movements ju Racn'csl.ue shown in Note 21 on Page 27.
i . -h\}x iy

B s Arrpr M. Anes? Reps of bz Aoty 1231 92
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BALANCGCE SHEETS
A0 Mk 1992

S

, Cowup omipuny

g £ silhon Nute 19 1991 199 1994

N FIXED ASSETS \ /
" Tangible assets . R T It N e T e e

; Fleet 2,829 2,513 2,804 2,423

. Propenty 420 392 T415 | 357}

R Haulprient 223 291 206 | 2 Iﬂj

b i NI B T d | !

! 11 3,472 3,134 3425 2,990

: Investments o2 93 . 108 161 269

iy CURRENT ASSETS prrv ) -
:_ Stocks 13 34 37 sl 2 ’
: Drebtors 4 920 195 + B9 751 '
“ Shott-term loans and deposits . 706 203 650 158

L Cash ac bank ‘ 27 22 23 i6

e 1,60 1,057 . 1,59 953
CREDITORS: : K :

E amounts falling due within one year It (1,70€) (1,600} a1 (1L617)

NET CURRELIT LIABILITIES (19) 543) (124) (664

b ' TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURNENT LIABILITIES . 3,546 2,699 362 2,595

¥ CREDITORS: , ‘
ot . N amounts Blling due after more than one year 17 {1,888) (1,366} (2,183} (1,654) ~
PROVISIONS FOR . |

« LIABILITIES AND CHARGES ‘ 19 (39 s 55 0 G 47

- ‘ 1,604~ 1,278 1228°" B4 .
i ’
N CAPITAL AND RESERVES \i‘c\ B
E Called up share capual N 20 182 180 82~ 130

: Reserves 1|

N Shatre presminnt account A ; 10 1 10 |
Revaluation 60 82 54 -2

;! Other “(11) (12)

. Prafit and less axount 1,043 707 a7y 639
1,284 \ 958 1,225 894

* Convertble Capital Bonds 2005 2 320 J20 ‘

e 1,604 1,278 1,225 894

. l .

. Lord King of Wattuaby hainian ) —~
2 Sir Clofin Marshall Depury Chairman and Chief Execurive '/ e, e -
23 Derck Stevens Chief Finandal Officer s y},‘sws“ “":‘f i
/(-—-—” = TR Ra e ‘ o
18 May 1992 w y Fo—
a

3
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT
{01 peaz eendd 43 Moch 1992

fariicy
£ mitlon Nere iy 1994
Net cash inflow from operating activities Je 5M 296
Retums on investments and servicing of finance e
Tnterest received 49 j i 62,
fTivterest patd e bank and other loaps - 98y | (89|
Iuterest paid on finance leases and fire purchase aangements {53) !.33;41
Dividends received from investments L a]
Dividends paid ' (633 f“}i
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance (166) {121}
Taxaon :
UK corporation tax paid {11} {10%}
[nvesting activities . Rt l St
Trurchase of tangibie fixed assets ith (537 813}
Refiind of progress payments 153 ! 189
Purchase of investmente N \ 12h {7H {16)
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings . LT ' &
Sale of tangible fixed assets and imksments i 50 268 |
Sale of business a8 | o 274 |
. ) PRGN i P —
Net cash outflow from investing activities {24} (377)
Net cash inflow/{ourlow) including incyeases in shost-tem bank deposits, before fimancing 390 11
‘Increase m shoit-term bank deposits R . (33
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing 56 {(311)
Financing
Changes in borrowings 18 o o ey e e oy
Benk amf other feans paised [ 390§ 1 Jis -
Bank and other boans repard i (215) (o5
Finance leases and hire purchase amangements repaid E (55) {4%@
120 102
', Changes in thare eapinl 20 [ cemmemmy e - “
Issnie of onding iry share capital imrder Bmployee Share Oprion Schemses 2 i
Share prewivn seecived R B i % A
117 1
Met cash inflow from finanang 131 103 }
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 15b 187 {208)

The abave Cath Flow Statement is prepared 1n accordance with Financal Reportung Standard No., 1, Under this
standard, tangible fixed assets acquired under finance feases and hire purchase arrangements together with the
associated financing are excluded from the statciment. Tangible fixed assets acquieed in this way durnmg the year
amounted to £,362 million (1991 £513 ruflion),

10 saed dsrwaps P Aenual Gepost & uvunty 32192 ’




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS e

Tor Az yoor i d W bifands 1990

I ACCOUNTING POLICIES fenvmucd!

¢  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 5
All properties, other than those ofa speciatised use nature such as hangars and aireraf maintenance buildings, were
professionally valued wt open market value for existing use or open market value at 31 March 1984 and are mcloded
iy these accounts on the bass of that valustion, with subscquent expenditure at cost, Spea ialised use properties are
included at cost.

Provision 1 made for the depreciation of all property and cquipment, apart from fiezhold land, based upon cxpected
uszfl lives and, in the case of Ivasehold propertics, over the duration of the leases il shoner.

d  LEASED AND HIRE PURCHASED ASSETS )
Where assets are financed through finauce teases and hire purchase arangements under whitch substancally ali the tisks
and tewards of ownership are trnsferred to the Group, the assets are treated as it they had been purchased outright.
The amount included in tangible fixed assews represents the agpregate of the capital Jements payable during the Jease
and hire purchase term. The corresponding obligation, reduced by the appropriate proportion of lease and hire
purchase payments made, is tcluded in creditors. The amount included iri Gagible fixed astets is deprer ssad ort the
basis described in the preceding paragraphs and the interest clenient of lease and hire pirohase payments nade i
included in intercst payable in Ose peofit and loss account,

Payments under all ather lease arrangenments, known as operating feases, are charged to tfie profic aud Joss account in
equal annual amounis over the perivd of the Jease, In respeet of mrcraft, operating Jease armngements allow the
Company to terminate the Jeases after a limited period, nomually every five 1o seven years, without further material
financial abligations,

ATRCRAFT AND ENGINE OVERHAUL EXPENDITURE

Aircralt and engite spares acqimred on the introduction or expansion of a fleet are carried as tanpitle fixed assets and
generally depreciz,ed in Jine with the fleats 1o wluch they relate, Replacement spares and all other costs relating to the
naintenance and overhaul of sircraft and engines are churged to the profit and loss accoust o consumption and as
tacarred respectively. .

ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS .

Companies in which the Group has an equity interest of 20 per cent or more, but not exceeding 50 per cent, ars
clsufied a5 asocrated undestakings. The Group's share of the profits less losses of associated undersakings i included
in the consohdaied profit and Joss account and s share of the post-acquisition resuits of these companies is included
n merests in assaciated wndertakings in the Group balance sheee,

STOCKS AND WORK IN PROGRESS
Stocks and woek 1n progress are valued <% dhe Jo.ver of cost and net realisable value,

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Casly mcludes cash in hand and depoms, including forcign denominated vurrencies, held with banks and other fnancal
untitotions which are repayable on demand, Cash equivalents are short-term investments with nwatuntics of Jess than
three months, wcluding those denonunated in forergn cumenciss,

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Retirement benefits are payable through separately funded UK penston schemcs with cquivalent arrangements for
overseas teaones, Gontrbutions to pension funds are made on the basis of independent actuarial adviee awd charged
to the profit and loss accoutt so as to spread *i1¢ cost over the remaining service lives of the employees,

DEFERRED TAXATION ]
Provisions are made for deferved taxanon, using the habilty method, on short-ternt timing differences and all sther
matenal aming differences to the extent that it is probable that the Habilities will cryseallise in the foreseeable futnre.

FOREIGN CURRENCY BALANCES

Forewgn currcacy balances are rranstated mto steeling at the mtes raling at the balance sheet date, except for certain loay
repagiment insaabnents whuch are translaced at the forwand contract rates where instalments have been vovered forwand
at the balapie shégt datz. Changss in the sterling value of outctanding foreign currency loans, fnance leases and hure
purchase atrangemments and the relared aireraft and mvestments sre taken to reserves. Exchange diffeeences arismg from
the re-trar-lanon - other investments in ovencas companies are recorded as movements on reserves, All other profits
or loswer arising on translavion are dealt with dirough the profit and loss account, Transtation rites ta the pound steching
at I Marck were as follows:

1992 1991
US Dollar 1.74 1.74
Japanese Yen 31 243

12 Btk A B Arweesst Repent € cvnee 1991 %2




2 ANALYSIS OF GROUP TURNOVER, OPFRATING SUREPLUS AND QPLRATING NET ASSETS

[ ¥
£ withen ’ 1972 fuevy
a  GROUe 'E‘UR.NOVER COMPRISES,

‘Fraffic revenue P

Scheduled services ‘ - - 7
Passenger = 4.2 1 4,057
Freight and mad 396 376
) 4,677 4,433
i Nou-scheduled services 1 A 108
y 4,788 4,538
Other revenue 436 Jvy
5,224 - < 4,937

b GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF GROUP TURNOVER AND UPERATING SURPLUS

Tumoper T Tumaver

heading “Burope”.

by wea of onginal nle by ana ¢f destipation
£ mildn {992 1974 1992 1991
| United Kingdom 2,419 2,304 538 576
Continental Europe 911 8§63 1,528 1.374
l Europe 3,330 J. 167 +2,064 1,950
The Americas . 941 387 1,645 1,615
; Africa, Middle East and Indian sub-continent 434 373 665 590
| Far East and Australasia 519 2L 850 782
j 5,224 4,937 5,224 4,937
Oprratng surphat
I 5
£ willien ‘\\ \ o2 1994
l Europe 20 {10}
The Americas 11, 123
; Africa, Middle East and Indian sub-connnent 1% 13
i Far Bast and Australaua 86 LA
, 344 L7
' Tuss mpractical 1o separate United Kingdom and Continental Burope opézating results on a meaningful basis, smee the
i day tor thay aperations are fislly anteg =pted, The operating resuhs for 'l:cfi: services are therefire combined under the

The pnor yar comparatives have been re-stated o reffect . Iscd hf',"'s el allocanng multiple segient traffic revenue
and specific selling costs to the appropriate geograpincal ate, ., de Ditsevors have decided to change the previous
analysis of geographical segments 10 bong them into ine with llnmh Au“ ays npcr.\umu! MARESMENt Hructure,

¢ GROUP OPERATING NET ASSETS ' (.n‘-.mg
4, millien - 1902 19t
b Ciroup operating net asscts compise: \ .
CGroup net ascts 2,776 .17 %
Net borrowings v {1,172) 2385

v

1,604 L278

Itk Sinaaye D frs! Ropatt & diagonis 199 92 13




NOTES TG THE AGCOUNTS /s

Foa 0 pezeevdnd O Aok 0]

3 OPERATING SURPLUS

A melbon

1 ANALYSES OF OPERATEING EXPENDITURE
Ermployee coses
Deprediation
Aircrafl apeisting lesse costs
Fuel and oil costs
Enguneertig and other aiceraft costs
Landrag fecs and en route charges
Handling clrarges, catering and other operating costs
Selling costs
Accomniadation, gtound equipment and currency differences

Toral operating expenditure

Cost of ales
Adminbirative expenses

Toial operanng expenditure

993

1,506
295
6
521
252
425
608
652
375

4,880

4,777
103

4,880

1,451
A
S84
FY¥
285
174
L'
S66

4,651
117

4,776

All Group activitics are considered ta be contred around the aidine business, Consequendy, operating income and
sxpeaditute have been presented on a Group basis and comparative fignres have been adjusted accordingly.

b THE OPERATING SURPLUS 1S ARRIVED AT AFTER CHARGING:
Depreciaton of Group angble fived awets
Oumed assels B i
Finane leasedd aireraft
Hire pu.chased afrcraft
Otfrer leaschold interests

Opetating lease costs
Lease rentals  ~ aireraft
v prperty and eguipmnent
Hire of equipment and charter of wircrafi and aens

Auditors' remuneration

Ihrectors’ cmolumients < fees
- salary and benefits )
- perfomance related bons

¢ RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING SURPLUS TO NET CASH INFLOW
FROM QPERATING ACTIVIEIES

£ el

Group operatg surphus

Deprecntion charges

(ther items not mvolving the moverhent of cash
{Inurease)/decrease i stoeks ond debtons
Inerease/decrense) in ereditors

Net ¢ash inflow from operatng acviries

14 sk Ansags 8o s Rapn 1 Aaspns 199192
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208 | 23

lm,.,.‘;ml . .2

295 272

e e ot oy

236) | 2841

69 i 5

i

e BUL

A28 Ja3

g

190 1992

L #

855,000 843,000

85,000 90,000

1,790,088 1,624,851
569,783

2,444 871 1,714,851

Gircp

1992 1991

34 Ta?

295 bl d

9 38

{149) o)

'] 25T

591 294



A OPFRATING SURITUS passist /-

d

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS fevdntu Company’s pension contrabaiiom)
Chatrman aud Bsigbest pasd Director

Salary and benefits
Peorrnanie refated bons

The Directers’ remuneration was witha these rnges:

LI0000 - £15,000
L1500 - £20,000
L2500 = £30,000
30,001~ £35,000
£45.001 = £50,000
85,001 ~ /90,000
90,001~ £95,600
£135.001 + £2140,000
L175,0n1 - A 180,000
L280,001 ~ £285,000
£335,008 = £360,000
LA05,001 - £410,000
L385,001 - £390,000
£665001 « £670,000

feene

M bR

A &

449,150 A7, 650
220,600

" 669,350 407650

U

Number Numbor
2 2
!
! !
|
1 ?
i
!
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

Executive Dircetors’ emolumencs {excluding penszon contributioas) consist of 2 basie salary and 1 performanee related
bonus, Salaries are reviewed anauaily by the Renmneration Conptitree wineh consists of non-executive Directors and
is crafred by the non-executive Depunty Chatean. Performance related bonuses are drven by corporate pedfonmance

targets which are set annually by the Remuneration Cannuuee,

“This is the first year that the maxunuam bonus has been paid and reflects the extent w which the recovery n the

Group's perforninned exceeded expectations, Last year no bonus was paid.
pap

A Director has watved fees of £15,000 for the year (1991: £15,000),

EMPLOYEE NUMBLERS AND COSTS

Liraip vumber

‘The average number of employees m the Group durisg the year ways as follows,
ploy 4

United Kiugdom
Chverseas

£ alhen

The aggregate payrell costs of these employees were as follows:
Wages and salanies, ncluding employee bonus of £35 million (1991 D)

Sadial secunty costs

Contnbucions o pension schemms

1992 1991
43,744 47.221
6,665 2206
50,409 §4,427
Grep

T 1991
1,122 1,050
104 wy

62 56
1,268 1,205

Huzuh reaya Blcoleans! Rapen U daewnts 1997 92
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NOTES TQ THE ACCOUNTS . omuc
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OTHER INCOME AND CHARGES
A, il

Surplus on disposal of fixed assers

Provision agunst aecraft not in cucent use  (Noke $Ha)
Share of results of assomated undertakings

Income from trade invesoments

Ampunts written off investnents

Ocher

NET INTEREST PAYARLE

[nterest payable:

On bank Touns

Rapaayabfe wholly within five years
Repayable in whole or it part after five years
Ut finance deases

Repayable wholly sathin five years
Repayable e whole or e part afier five years
O hire purchase arangements
Repayable m shale or v part after five yors
n uther loans

Repapable wholly wathent fiee years
Repayable vr whole or i part gfier five yoans

Interest caprealsed
Tnserest receivable

Currency losses/{profin) on revaluation of general purpose loats at year end

hprien
[hH] bR
36 e
(8)
é
2 3
{8) {N
7 5
29 112
1 2
15 4
26 10
5 9
30 M
G 2
78 82
161 123
(17} {26}
(57 (64}
87 33
1 e
88 29

The average rate of interest o loans, exduding finance leases and hire purchate arrangements, was 7.7 per cent
{19912 9.0 per centd, In respect of all loans, wicluding finance leases and hire purchase amangements repayable in whole
or w part alter five years, the Snaf cepayment date s March 2000, The interese rates ruge fom 4.7 per cent to

143 per cent (19912 B.o per cent to 15.8 per ceny)

EXCEPTIONAL ITEM
Costs assoarated with employee ceducteags

Wetesdown to esumated realiable value of TrStar aircraft surplus to reguirenents

TAXATION  tace alor Nowe 23)

Utnted Kingdom

Cyaporarion tax at I3 por cent {19911 34 per centt)
Prigr year 12 admstmest

Overseas

IEull provison for defeored raxation had been made, there would have been an
adrhiional charge for the year of £74 nullion (1991 £1 millon afier taking inta
comuderation reducnons i the corporation Lax rate}, comprusing:

Accelerated capital allowances

M
Other thning differcnees

Henh Aweays FaAmest Repoes 8 Aurenss 19008 42

93
a7
120
a8 31
(10)

2 4
30 s
45 15
29 (14}
2 1



B LEXTRAORDINARY § TEM ‘ bioe

£ etz pix HOP)
3 NET PROFIT ON SALE QF ENGINE OVERHACL BUSINESS

Prafit ansing oo sale 149

Corporation tax thereon )

Nt profic 140

The corporation tax charge of £9 million is after taking acconnt of vanous relicfi,

b SALE OF BUSINESS

Fixed assets i
Stocks ‘ i 12
Orlice net assets J i L 3'
; & 121
Cost of disposal - 4
. Profit on sale ¢Fbusiness = 149
Satisfied by cash ’ , 274
9 DIVIDENDS L ’ Corcp and Comparny
1992 HTH
! L £
" Interim dividend of 2.94p per share {1991: 2.80p per share) 21,226,308 20,198,024
: Final dividend of 7.24p per share (1991 6,05p per share) 52,673,695 43,042,988
: .
‘ 73,500,003 S3,841014
: 10 EARNINGS PEIR SHART ’ Linpup
: 1952 1ot
' Eantings per share i caleulated as follyws; .
; Profic un ordinary activities after taxation, attributable to sharchollers A255m L95m
! Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1sue 722,801,000 721203000
i Basic carnings per share 35.3p 13.2p
Folly diduted camings pes share 31.0p 13.4p

Fully diluted camings per share is ealeulated on a weighted average o 908,840,000 ordinary shares (1991; 910,479,000
after allowing for the convension rights attaching to the Convertible Capital Bonds and vwestandiug share options and a
carresponding acjustrent to incoine to climinate mtexsst payable on the Convertible Capatal Bonds and to include
notional interest receivable on the subscription cash for shares,

Brtuly shinaspe P Aromeel Regot & Avcwges Wogu2 17




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (mmag

Bor ks gosr cndid W Minly 199 e

11 TANGIHLE ASSETS T
FA S Nowe Foer Propesty Fpmpmrony L F44]

a GROuUP
COST OR VALUATION 1tk
Balince 1 April 4,108 551 524 5,183 9,181
Adjustents o opening balaize 5 1 6 ?
Exchapge adjustmenty 7 7 23
Additions i1k H04 80 13 947 L34
Disposals (261) {40 {33) (334) {333
Reclassification of capitalised interese ) (9) i1
Retind of progeess paymients {158) ' {158) 1159
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH LA 592 554 5,642: 5181
DEPRECIATION
Talance 1 April v 1,595 159 293 2,049 Loi?
Adjustracnts to opening balinee 5 (1 4 2
Exchange adjustrnents 2 {H
Charge for the yeat 217 19 59 295 272
Supplementary depreciation ' 2
Provision against nircraft not in eurrent use o . 8 8
Disposals . {157). (6) (22) (185) [165)
Rechssification of capitalised interese - 1)} : 4]

: BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 1,667 172 KX} 2,170 2,049

NET BOOK AMOUNTS ,
31 Miarch 1992 2,829 420 23 3472
I March 1991 2,513 12 229 2134

UTILISATION AT 31 MARCH
Agiers an current ush

Ounied 1,53 oz 0 169 2,057 1,898
Firtanee leased 8 ) -9 347 Jog
Hire procltase arangenents 695 695 49
Progress payments 200 68 45 k3 ) S0
Asseis nat in current use S 60 - 60 23
' _ 2,829 20 223 3472 31

THE NET BOOK AMOUNT OF PROPERTY COMPIISES:
Freehold 109 122
Loog feaschold ’ . 22 21
Short Jeasehold 289 249
’ 420 292

Net Eooke cmpunt

£ villion Co a Vidationfost Dvepeediation 1992 199}

Revatued flict and propertics are inchuded in the accounts
at the following mmounts:

Vidited in 1984 = propenty 113 31 82 pA
Lisdued jn 1985 = fleet ' 988 735 253 325
Taw} 31 March 1992 ,101 766 335

Tetal 31 Mach 1991 1,144 XTI 298

I these azsets had ot been sevalued they would have been

included at the following smauncs:

31 Mugch 1992 911 673 238
31 Marih 1991 A% o84

L)
2
—~
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1 TANGIBLE ASSETS (oot ‘ Td

" wthon ) , Nee - Fat Prapeny - Bpelpener 1992 Fial)
b COMPANY T
COST OR VALUATION ' ik - i
Balance 1 Apal 3873 507 484 4,864 4,160
Adjustniens to opening balance !
Exchange adjustnients 7 7 25
Addinons i m 77 55 929 1,267
Disposals {261) {40) {32} (333) {323}
Transfers from/{ta) subsidiary undertakings  TH 156 13 14 208 )]
Reclassification of ¢apitalised interest N ) {9) (&)
Refund of progress payments {158) {158) 1189
BALANCE AT 31 MARGH ' 4,405 582 521 5,508 4,864
DEPRECIATION . -
Balance 1 Apal ’ 1,450 150 2M 1,874 1,803
j Adjusiments to opening balar ¢ ‘ 1) ‘ (1)
: Exchange adjustments 206 i {1
‘t. Charge fot the year ) 209 18 35 280 244
‘{ Supplemencary depreciation ‘ 24
Provision against aireralt not in current wse 8 8 ,
Dispasals (156) ) 21) (183) (15%)
Tramsfers from/{1o) subsidiary underakings 114 91 6 9 106 (+1)
Reclassification of capitalised interest (1) 4 (1)
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 1,601 167 315 2,083 1,874
NET BOOK AMOUNTS
31 March 1992 : 2,804 415 206 ¢ 3425
31 March 1991 2,423 357 210 2,930

UTILISATION AT 31 MARCH
Assets in curreit use

Owned - T L5 M7 159 2,018 1,766
Finance leased ' o 33 2 339 296
Hire puschnse amapgements 695 675 349
Progress paynients . 200 o8 45 313 536
Assets not in current use S 60 60 23
2,804 415 206 3,425 2,990
THE NET BOOK AMOUNT OF PROPERTY COMPIISES:
Frechold 107 n
Long leaschold 22 2
Short leaschold 286 245
s 415 357
1 B
3 s . Nt hovk wmint
£ oulion . Eatuatrenfivrt Ixprectation 1972 r99r
k ' Revalued fleer and propesties are included i the accounts
at the following amounts: .
Valued in 1984 ~ propenty 108 28 80 70
Flued tpn 1988 ~ fleet 895 G666 229 Jos
Tota! 31 March 1992 1003 694 309
Totul 37 Marh 1991 1,069 674 375

If chese assets had noe beep revalued they would have been

included ac the fpllowing amourits:

31 March 1992 436 619 217

31 Morch 199 §og f41 257

Retieh Ainissys P Al Regast B 4wt 1091 92
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1L TANGIDLE ASSETS ronneud)

d

20

COST/VALUATION

Owanedd fleets of BAC (=115, Boewy 737s, Dociug 7471005 and cerlain Bacing 747-2008 were yestared a1 33 March
VO8RS naving regard to 3 market valnation by Avmark Intemational Ltd, The resultantincrease in value was ¢redued o
reseas s, FeiStar aireraft surplus to requirements have been written down to estunated reaasable value

All propereies. arlier thin spegialised use properics, were valued at open matket value for existing use or open market
vatue ar 31 March 1984 by Richard Ellis, Chartered Surveyors, and this value was included in the accounts for the year
then ended, A achier atreraft feets, specialised wie properties, and equipment ar stated at cost less depreciation.

TRANSFERS FROM/TO SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

“Transfers of cost and accumulated depreciation relase mainly to engine spares and properties transfersed between British
Airways Ple and Boutish Aieways Engine Overhaul Lid prior to sale,

DEPRECIATION

Flerts are generally depreciated over periods ranging from 14 o 20 years afice making allowanee for residual values,
Property, apart from freehold land, is depreciazed over expected wsefinl life subject to 2 maximum of 50 years,
Equipment is depreciated over periods ranging from three to 20 years, sccording to the type of equipment.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS ©on Crotg Conpany
£ villm ‘ 1992 1991 1092 1954

Capital expenditure auchonsed but not provided forin the
agcounts amaounts Lo

Authorised and confracted 5,095 3,181 5,005 3169
AAnthonsed bt pot comracted 565 380 561 70
: 5,660 3,561 5,656 3,539

Of the outstanding commtiments, £811 million relates to the acquisition of the flects of Boeing 767-300 and Docing
F37 aircraft. Dritish Alrways has armngements through a facility provided by a syndicate of banks for it to acquire a
tagre proportion of these aireraft on 3 sumber of altegnative bases, The balange of comumitments includes £4,472

m Jbon which relates to the acquisition of Boelng 747-400 and Boeing 777 aireraft scheduled for delivery dunng the
next ten years, whach st is intended will be financed partially by internal cash Qow and partially throngh external
financing.

“The Gronp’s hioldings of cash, shore-term loans and deposics, together with committed funding faeilities, are suffivent
10 cover the full cost of all fiom aircralt deliveries due in the next two yrars,

FORWARD TRANSACTIONS IN FOREBIGN CURILENCY C Gap
5992 v

The Group had the followang forward purchizse contracts outstanding:
Maruring within one year

- tor cover payments n US Dollars $576m $548m
= iy cover payments in other currencics L5m Ldm
Maturing after cne year

=10 gaver payients nr VS Dollars ’ $71m $250m

Thess forward purchase rontracts have been entered into substantially for future capital comrisitmenas,

ANALYSIS OF TANGIBLE ASSET ADDITIONS Canp

4 iz Fleat l';mpﬂry Lqroegrent 1992 fevi

Addwons acquired for cash 394 78 $v 539 813

Addibons acquired under finance

leazes and hire purchase arrangemans a2 ‘ ‘ 362 513

Other moverments 48 . 2 &) % {22}
804 fio 03 947 1,004

Broesh Ay BL Anang] Repeit c e 199097
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£ oxlon 195 19vr 1992 e

1 LEASING COMMITMENTS
The aggregate payments, tar whech there are commitnints
under operating Jeases as at the end of the year,

b

Al due as follows:
@ i} FLEET . ' .
$F5thin one vear 232 - 220 212 240
Detsecent one ad five i 497 517 497 51
Quer five years 2 -
729 739 729 739 i
Amaunes payable wichin one year rcb:g,ra} commnitments
expiring a3 follows: ’ . b
Withine ene year 27 35 27 kL] A
Betuen one and five years ) 205 180 205 150
Cwer five years 5 5
T ‘ .2z 220 232 220
i} PROPERTY AND EQUIBMENT :
Within otie year 57 46 55 44
Between one amd five years - 133 26 128 a3
Owes five years, ranging up 10 the year 2075 373 ar - 369 226
563 373 582 J63
Amounts payable within one year relate to commitments
expiring as follows;
$7thin one year 15 13 15 12
Berween ong and five years 33 26 31 25
Over five yran 9 7 L9 7
57 46 55 44

The fleet leasing comuuments inchude the balance of rental obligations under operating Jeases in respect of 13 Doeing
T47-180y, eleven Bocing 767-20%, five Bocing 747-2005, one Bocing 757-200, 20 Boeing 737-200¢, four Bocing
737-400s, two DC10-30s and 13 BAe AT mreraft, but exclude six Boting 757-200s which were converred from
operating leases to Ananice Jeases during the year ended 31 March 1992 folfowing an extension of the original lease
periads, inshe case ofmos of these obligadons, the Company may be requited to mect @ small share of any loss on
resale 15 options to extend the lease sre not excrased,

The pancipal amount of the total property and equipment commitments in i} above relares 10 propeny Irases,

- ndue Afneaays P Anvial Regont £ Tavunee 1997 92 21
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Y
INVESTMENTS
Ll
SUBSHNARY UNDERTAKINGS

lnvesaments at cost, less amounis wtten off
Balapee | April - net of provision of S188 million
{} Apnl 1990 £193 milliom)

Additions .
Loan repaynieits "
Exchange differences

hsposals

Prowision movements

Balanee 3t 31 March ~ net of provision of 4211 million
{31 Mareh 1991: 188 million)

ASSOQOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS AND
TRADE INVESTMENTS

Balance 1 Apni - net of provision of 411 million
{t April 1990: £13 miltian)

Additions

Loan repaymenits

Exchange differences

Share of auributable results

Goodwill warten off

Withdrawal of snvestment in Sabena World Airdines
Disposals

Provision movenients

Balance at 31 March ~ net of provision of 419 million
(31 March 1991 £11 million)

Analysis ol balanee st 31 Mazch

Euuity at ¢ost Tess amounts written off
Advances at cost less amounts wrinen oft
Attributable reserves

TOTAL INVESTMENTS
Unbsted

Subsichary undentaking
Astociared sundertakings
Trade Inpestments

Listod

Trade inpestnionts

VALUATION

Apyregate value atzibuted by the Ditectons to unlisted
associated undertakings and trade investments

Market value of hsted investnients

STOCKS
Raw materials, conmunables and work in progress

The replacement cost of stocks 1y conmdered to be not matcerdiy difterent from theic balance shieet values,

Haneh Aineays Pl Awneal Repert 32 dusunn 199192

1992

108
@

(1
(5

-1 (6)
&

23

103

1
93

17
93

85
17

M

Ginip

19%1

g
16

)
(19)
(1)
2
log

114

(14
108

15

78

15
108

93
it

37

1951

21
»
(109)

(23)

136

38

2

®
0]

25

[~

- e

25

136

17
161

31

Compeny

19e

m
68
{4
4
{51

231

(19

231
I
12

15
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DEBTORS fowp kutteriny
o mathon Note 1992 1964 wn 4kt
“Trade debtors 674 (73] 636 f03
Amdunts owed by subsidiary underakings 2 1y
Mnovnrs owed by assoviated undertakings 5 ? 4 ¥
Other debtors 82 26 84 22
Deferred axaton G 23 3 3
Prepayments and accrued income 156 141 140 128
920 795 889 751
CASIH AN CASH EQUIVALENTS forzup
£ aullian o Ke Charige In the Fear 1992 1291
AMNALYSIS OF BALANCES AS SUOWN IN THE BALANCE SHEET
Short-term loans and deposits 503 706 203
Lesy: bank and other deposits with a matrity date ofnwn chan three months (357) (412) (55)
~ Cash equivalents 146 254 148
“:Casl at bank 5 27 22
Qverdeafis - unsecured 16 39 (2) (1)
190 319 129
ANALYSIS OF CHANGES DURING THE YEAR, Girup
£ nliion 1592 1991
Balance at 1 April 129 d31
Nez cash inflow/{outflow) before adjustments Jor the effect of exchange rate changes 187 12084
Effect of exchange rate changes k] o
Balance ar 31 March 319 129
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEALL Croep Campany
A million Neve 1¥92 w191 1992 199}
Loanps, finance leases anc hire purchase arrangements i3
Bank and other loans 6 G 5 63
Fianee leases 35 28 3 25
Hire purchase amangements 35 13 25 13
‘ ‘ 66 105 60 101
Qiverdratts - unsecured 15 2 A1 | 37
Trade creditors 654 - 599 618 569
Amounts owed o subsichary undertakings ; 101 89
Amounts owed to assocrated underakings ! !
Other creditors including taxation and social seconty T I I R .
Cxher creditors l 114 ’ 58] i 106 ! sal
Comporate taxation | 56] 29 5 50} i 25
Oither taxation and social seorry | 281 27‘ / Z‘Jé H 25
B L .. 2L = ]
{98 114 183 106
Proposed dividend 53 44 53 44
Accruals and deferred ancome ; 1o TS R
Kles it udvance of carnag < i 633{ ‘1 AT 6031 ; LEAN
Acentals and deferred icome : 100¢ L HSj i 981 ]; 146
733 6% 703 Hv9
1,706 L.e0n 1,747 La17

Brtish by I Anniad Repant $r Aorounzr 1998 92 23
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17 CRIDITORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

£ fonenpany
£ miften A B TYY) 199y 1992 1595
Loans, finame levses and bire purcliase arrangeiments 1%

¢ Danl, and sther loans 948 712 654 S60
R Finance fotses 32 268 310 264
Hire purhase amangeents .. 577 324 577 324
Loans from subsidiony vardertakings 607 454
1,837 1,304 1,148 1,602

Trade creditors 6 10
Accrualt and deferred income 45 52 35 52
1,888 1364 2,183 1,654

18 LOANS, PINANCE LEASES AND HIRE PURGCHASE ARRANGEMENTS
5 TOTALLOANS, FINANCE LEASES AND HIRE PURCHASE ARRANGEMENTS

Loans . V- [ v o sy s o,
Baarrd: - Dewtsefee Mark ] DM75m ] D’H? ‘)‘Jnl rDM‘?Sm DM75m
= U Dollpr ) see beloyy $3%m| $334m) ' 5393m $3Xm
- Stedmg -} O Llmyp{  f28u] ] L38m| | L20m
156 © 243 -} | 237
Buero-sterling uoles 300 ' 300 - 300 360"
Other - £75 Dollar i S400m| gﬁ $250m
- Sterling 3 ,{:(\Bml i £86m AL68m L86m
296 23 68 &4
Loans frent subsdiary underakings —— e
- US Dallar | 5400m §250m
« Sterling ‘ I[ £375m ,6310"1
g 607 454
) _ o [ g e e
Finance Jeases = 178 Dollar : i3 $2mi $2m
« Seerhing ‘f‘_ _,(','347:1:! g 9"»'m§ A£3M0m| £288m
347 296 0 - 289
Hire purchase arrangements A I trelimioies & Bl S
« Japanese Yen v ¥Y29,993m ! YI5,075m, | ¥29,993m} | Y17,075m
- U8 Dallar 5 SS"iJm' ] 346 ’mi H 5820::\5 §462m
602 337 602 337
1,903 1,409 2,208 1,703
¢ lompnshg:
Lank loans Tl L I Rt T e
Repayable wholly within five }ms i 1 61§ g 68
Repayable i whole or i part ofter five years ; 355, ! 184} i 2911 | 177
Lo L . L SRR L T R .
356 24F 2M 237
Other Joans, finang e leases and hire purchase arangements R e B e S
Repayalie whally wathin five years } 1347 4 324 } 127! [ 24
Repayable an whole ot ine past aftes five yoars i 1,413 ! 1,132 1, 790] % 1, 442
. W - e U U cmantra. nemmig me
1,547 1,164 1,917 i 4("6
1,903 1,402 2,208 1,703
Bank and oier loans are repavable up o the year 2016,
The bank lows o 3393 nallon age sconred on two Beeng 747-400k and five Boewagg 737-400s {1991 $234 nullion of
the totad bank, Joans of $334 aulhon secured on two Boemny 747-4008),
Induded in the Group bank loams of 2103 mfhion aee 2minaots wl’ £18 nullon and £64 mulhon respeeuvely secured
o une Boamy 747-400 and vne Bosog ?i?--itm i ml).
24 et Acno by Fh Arued Beprn & Ao cmts 109160
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION
The accounts have been prepared tnder the historical cost convention modified by the inclusion of certaim assets at
valuation as yrated below and in aseordance with all applicable United Kingdom accounting stantdards,

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group accounts inchle the acconnts of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings, each made up to 31 March,
together with the ateributable share of resulis and reserves of assaciated undertakings. The results of those companics
acquired or disposed of during the year are included for the periods of ownership,

Goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiary undertakings and in respect of associated undcn:kmgs is written oﬂ'
10 reserves on acquisition.

In accordance with Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, 2 scpamate profit and loss sezount dealing with the results
of the Company only has not been presented.

SEGMENTAL REPORTING
BUSINESS SEGMENTS ‘
The Direcrors regard all Group acrivities as relating to the aitline business as other activities are not material.

GEOGRAFHICAL SECMENTS

Tumovee iy destination

The analysis of tamaver by destination is based on the following eriteria:

Scheduled and non-seheduld senvices "Tumover fom do.nestic servives within the United Kingdom is aributed to the
United Kingdom. Turnover from inbaund and outbound serwees between the United Kingdom and overseas points
waitributed to the geographical area in which the relevant overseas paine lies,

Otlier revenie. - Revenue froan she sale of pavkage holidays i awributed to the (vcugnpluc:l area in which the holiday
is taken while revenue from aireraft nainweaance and other miscellancans services is ateributed an the basis of where
che cusiomer resides, ‘ ¢
Turaver by prigin

The analysis of mmover by origin s denved by allccatingy revented to the area in which the sale was made,

Operating surplus resulting from turmover generated 1 =ach geographical arer acconding to origin ofsale is not
disclosed as it is neither pracucal nor meanngful to allocate the Group's dperating expenditure on this basis.
Ceographical analysiz of wef assets

The major revenue-carning assets of the Group are comprised of the aircraft fleet, all of which are registered in the
United Kingdom Since the Group's aireraft fleet is employed fexibly across its worldwide route network, there i no
suitabic basis of allocating such wsets and related Liabilitics to geographical scgments,

TANGIDLE FIXED ASSETS N
Tangable fixed avsens are stated at cost except for cenain aircratt flacts and propertics which ace included at valuatiol,
D preciation 1 rakoudated to write of the cost or valuation, les: resicdusl value, on the straight line bagis,

4 IJ\,&. ‘

Costlvaluation  Apart from the Concorde Neer, which remains at nil hook value, the majority of the owned aircral}

fleers were profrssionally vabucd on a market value basis ac 31 March 1988 and are included in the accounts on the

basis of tha valuation, with subsequent expendice at cost. j(

The cost of aircraft which have been financed in parc by foans, finance leases and hire purchase scrangements in foreagn
curresicy i adjusted at each year end to take account of the .,tcrlmg st of related repayments during the year and the

tranalation of oustandiog habdites on such forewn wurrency bortawlngs at the year end rate of exchange, or the

appropnate forward rate where lab#» 4 nave been covered forward,

Capitalisation of interest on we geces payments  Interest attributed {0 progress paymients niade on acconnt of streraft under

CONRIICtION 18 £ wahised and added 1o the cost of the siceraft concemed. Interest capialisedd in espect of progress

payment® gt thmt areralt which subsequently become subject fo extendible operating lease armngements 1§ camed forwand

and written efl'over the 1nad fease penod,

Depreciation Fleet avets owned, ot held on finance leases and hire purelise arrangements, are depreciated at mres

edculated 1o vrite down th. cost or valusnon to the estimated residoal value at the end of the planned operational

iy, Resulual values and op rational Bives are revicwved annvally,

Hritlsh sy 8% Sonnai Ropront & Acounet 091 22 11




1§ LOANS, FINANCE 1EASES AND HIRE PURCHASE ARRANGEMENTY <ot
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Hank ¥
£ mitlon Lagny foas
INSTALMENTS FALLING HUE -

© Within one year (Note 163 6

19

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
Walap:r
£ mllion T dpnd
GROUP
Peostons and sinnilar obligations n
Other provisions /- oam
Lingation provision fNwie 26) i 25
Sundry ' 4
N b o B
33
Total 31 March 1992 55
Total 31 March 1991 A4
Analysis of 1otal at 31 March
British Arrways Ple §7
Sulsitiary undertakings ]
55

INCIDENCF 0F RLEPAYMENTS

After more than one year  (Note 17

o1 i

Betteeen one and o years ]
| 28
; 316

Retween two and five years 86
Tu five yeurs or more l 512
As0 598
Towl 31 March §992 a0 598
Total 31 Marh 1991 245 311
Analysis of tot) at 31 March
British Aipways Ple 29 368
Subsidiary undertakings ] 230
356 598

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN BORROWINGS DURING THE YEAR

£ lfian o
Balarice at 1 Aiiril

New foans mised

Repayment of snounts borrowed

Effect of exchange rate chonges

New loans saised 1o finance the acquistion of tangible pssers

Balanice at 31 March

. tenip i
et Iz perkae \
L EEW SRR o L1 we2
B 25 (i1 toy
s e V_l oy s e
A4 4 28l i 73; i 52 H
jat Loz ¢ by 172!
47 447} 422} § L0801
— ‘}_:J ‘i = :xnl‘i‘g_g !.: e -..14:7 :-'::!4 £:¢w. ‘i‘-‘?:)j‘
3i2 577 1,837 1304
347 02 1,903
296 337 1,409
C 30 602 a0l - 1,249
7 302 160
M7 602 I,QOS*M 1,409
Tinanie fases Grolap tolal
Bankiand  and fart purciiase "
othit foans amargRonk T 1921
7Tu 633 L 1,4u% 765
390 A 390 36
(215) {(55) {270) (444)
kI 9 12 29
954 587 1,541 L1
62 362 13
954 949 5,503 1,40%
Trarigfere
Sramdfeor
Frofit ind boks iher Prancts Balynoe
AdioRss roveminte _oppied 31 Serh
1 (1) {3 19
PO S T
; E ! 3 Y
ey e
10 & 35
11 {9 )] 54
(4] 2 {3} hE)
i1 )] (A} 54
in
11 ?g)) & 54
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26 SHARE CAPITAL tamre end L
199} HaH
Anthensed
1068 HU0,000 ordmary shi'es of 25p each AL26Tm 426"
Mlotted, valled wp and filly pand
tneed sbare capatal L182m 18t
Ordmary shares of 25p cach 727,537,224 921,391,704
Share aptions \\
Nuniber of ordinaey shares of 25p cach wnder oprion 47,452,722 55,938,893
Datet exercisable 1992 - 2001 (921« 2000
Peice per share 135p ~225p  135p- 225p
Nuniber of Employee Shace Schenes options exercised:
at 135p pof share 778,155 39,029
at 150p per share 2,078,027
at 161/ per share 561,908 103,992
a 173p ner share 2,150,311 564,792
at 2012p per shase 982
at 207p per share, ; 289,955

a 210p per shiare X 306,282
' 6,165,520 724,813

Full con\'cniq;l\'i of the 9.75 per cent Convertible Capital Bonds 2005 will require
the issue of £313775,864 ordinary shates. ik Coroup and Unimping

A mifiron o Shate qapitsl  Share premism 1992 1081

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES [N SHARE CAPITAL
DURING THE YEAR:

Balaze at 1 Apal 180 { 181 J&

Shares iswed vnder Employee Share Opnon Scheines 2 9 1 1

Balainge at 31 March 182 10 192 181
. ‘ J

26 pwn Awiags P Al Reget £ dnns S0 43




21 WESERVES

Nom od et Doty - i
Mhrasp proeuing Bl (15 ! Froftgnd
I dackity wone NN Lt eieng i3 LL
a  GROUP >
Halance 1 Apiil 1 82 {12) 07 778 2
Retained profit for the year : RX3| 321 13
Transfors relating to revalied asets {22 ‘ n
f Exchange adjustmenss .
« Fleet assets {Note 11a) !
Purehased goodwill
writien, (off)/back (see belowy) (5 (5) 13
Shaze premium ansing from i
issue ot vrdinary share capital S
- uirder Emplayee Share ; s
Option Schemes (Nore 20) 9 ‘ L9y 7
Oither movements 1 {2) Ay
Balance at 31 March 1] 6 {11} 1,043 ”'.‘,102 4 778
Acgaisition of 49 per cent of Devtsche BA Lufifshrtgeselschait mbH, BRI Bl
Share of net assess acquirad ' [ 2] l 2,
. Lesss faie value adjustments 1 { I,j ! ( I)
. Share ol net assets acquired at fir value i 1
; Const ol acquisition {6) {6)
Goodwill acquired and written off .(5) (5) -
Write back of geodwill in a former associated undertaking 18
. Purchase of further shares in subsidiary undertakings (5
Goodwill written (off)/back to roserves ) " {5 14
Cumulitive goodwill whtien off against reserves in espect of exsting suhsulmrv and associated undertakings ax
) 31 March 1992 was L3068 nullion {19912 ,£363 million),
{' . Norduinbutable : - Distributable Tetal <
I Share presuen Revatuanon Chker \ Brofit amd
£, wilhorr asing miny s  doas aonnd 1992 12%t
b COMPANY ' ,
Balapee | Apnil 1 74 639 714 (83
Retained profic for the year 320 - 320 30
Transfers relavng to revalued assees {5 an Lo
Exchange sdjustments
~ Fleev assers (Note [1h) 1
\ Share premium drsing from
: issue of ordisary share caputal
- under Employee Share
! Opvon Sehenres fNae 20 9 9 1
v Other movements (Y
alanee ar 31 March I 54 979 1,043 7id
X
L
'in.;
141
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23 UONVERTIBLE CAPITAL BONDS o3

28

dpp
£ stk i 1562
‘ 320 320

The tenms of she 9.75 per cent Converuble Capital Bonds allow the holders to conven, into Brtsh Awrways Ple
orduary shiares dunimg the peniod 1993 to 2005 on the bays of one ordinary share for each £243 of Bonds held
‘The germs also provide that on matuney in 2005 the Company may require remaning bondholders to cogvert thetr
Bouds sto ordinary shares ot te Company which would be sold on their behalf, 1€the proceeds of such sale are Jess
thag the issue price of the Bonds the Company has to fund any deficit from its own resources,

In these cgumstanees the Directors consider that it is lghly probable that the proceeds of the issue of the Canvertitle
Capital Bonds will beeome part of the Company's catled up share capatal in due course and therefore wall be available
to the Group on a permanerit basis, Accordingly, in order to give a true and fair view, the normal balance sheet format
specified by the Companies Ace hag been todified to inelude the Convernble Capital Bonds under Capital

and Reserves,

DEFERREN TAXATION jue atia Sores 2 and 14) “‘h-'-u.p Campany
A millient 1992 LEH 1991 1951
Deferred taxation comprises:
Acecelerared capital allosvances and other timing differences 12 iz 12 12
Adyance Corporation Tax on proposed dividend a7 {14) (17 N {14)
Timing differences in respret of property valuations 2 2 ‘

@ )

I ull pravision for deferred raxation at 33 per cent
{19912 33 per ceny) ad been mad, the following amounts
would have been required at 31 Marely;

Accelerated capital allowances, lesc unecheved loses 443 401 $41 396
Advauce Corparation Tax a7 (14) {17) {14)
Odher tinang dhiferences (30) (64) (30) (65}
Timing differcnces in respece of propesty valuatons 2 2 2 2

398 325 396 318

DIRECTORS AND QFFICERS' LOANS AND TIRANSACTIONS

No loans or credit trantactions were outstanding with Directors or Officers of the Company st the end of the year
which need to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 6 to the Companies Act 1985, During the
year the contract for a value of £2,937,790 with Wilsshicr Design and Management Limited, 2 subsidiacy undertaking of
‘Wilishier PLC of which A M Davies is the Chairman, as disclosed in the Report and Accounts 199091, was completed.
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25 PENSION COSTS ) >

: T

Yy
i N
'*: Batsh Alrways aperates wo difined benetit pension schiemes wy i UK, the Ainways Penson Sclzug (APS), whih

' . s vloed to new members and the New Ainvays Pension Schere (INAPS), of which all new pennanentemployees
. aver the age of 18 employed by the Company snd cortan subsidiary underakangs 1 the UK may become wmapbens
s The assets of these schemes are held it eparate prustee-sdunmstered funds, "

A\
Benetits provided under APS are based v-n final average pensonable pay and, for the majonty of members, are 5ul§ﬁg¢t

to increases in line with the Retal Price Tudex, Those provided under NAPS are based on final average pensionahle’,
s pay reduced by an amount equivalent to onc and a hatf times the Government’s lower camings hinit and are subject
to Wetail Price Index mereases up to a maxinum of five per centaut any ene year,

Most employees engaged outnde tlml\U[{ are cavered by appropriate local arrangements,
4

Employees’ contiibutions range from 5.75 per cent to 8.5 per cont of [ull pensionable pay 1 APS and from
A75 per ¢ent to 6.5 per cent of full pensionable pay less ope and a half times the lower carnings lmut in NAPS.

The latest actuarial valuations of APS and NADS were made ag at 31 Mareh 1989 by an Independent firm of qualified .
actuaries, ILWatson & Sons, using the ateaiued age method and showed that no further employec's contmbuuions ‘
were equited i respeet of APS while for NAPS an employer’s contribution equal to-an average o' 2,49 tmes the
employees’ contribution was appropriate, Enlranced benefits for members of both APS and NAPS were introduced
front | December 1989, The next valuations of the two schemeswill be carried out as at 33 March 1992 and the
resudts will be reflected in the accounts for the year ending 31 March 1993,

Cintup

£ raithen 1992 1991

All smounts recognised as costs were vither funded or paid directly.
Employer’s conteibutions {calcutated as set ot above for APS and NAP'S)
charged in the accounts were

Airways Pension Scheme

New Airways Penston Scheme 52 4%
Other pension schemes and provident funds « mainfy outssde the United Kingdom 10 8
62 56

At the date of the acnraral valuation the market values of the assets of APS abd NAPS amounted ta £2,671 million
and £,674 million reypectively, The value of the asets tepresented 122 per cent (APS) and 115 per cent (NAPS) of the
wabue of the benefits thae had accrued to members aftev allowing for asumed increases in carnings. Tn the case of APS,
the acwanal value of the assews wgether with fiuture contributions frem employees is sullicient to rover both past and
fisture service habihitics. T the cate of NADS, the actvanial value of the assess together with future contalmnons from
employees 1s suflicient to cover past service fiabilities and some future service liabilities and the employer’s eomribution
1s intended to make up the balance of fisture service habilities, The principal asumptions used in the actuanal

vatuation were that, vver the long terms, the annual return on wvestments would be 2.5 per cent higher than the
antsisal increases 1 earmags aud 4.5 per cent ligher than annual increases w dividends, Annual pension mncreases.
over the lony teem, were assumed for APS to be at the same level as dividend increases and for NADPS ata leve)

one per cent lower.

¥mployer's contrbutions in respect ol overseas employees have been detenmined in agcordanve with best fogal pracrice,

26 CONTINGENCIES ‘

Contingent fiabilities exise Jor which no provision has been made 1 the aceomnts covenng oblyzations of the Company

and guarantees gven by or on bebalf of subsidiary and assaciated undertakings, For the Group they amount to

L2490 million (1991: 5107 nullion) and for the Company A132 mtlion (1991: £634 million). The figure (or the
*ompany includes £615 millon {19912 £527 aullion) m respect of Converuble Capital Bonds and borrowangs by

subsidiary and assocated undertakings,

“here are a number sfidenufied fegal and other dums whith emanate from international akrme operanons. Where
the Board considers that a material biabuity may arise from sach daims, relovant sums have been provided. n addinon,
experience with litigation and rigubation in the USA amd ehewhere has led the Board to conclude that w1 prudent o
carcy forward the praviaon of £28 mllion made in prior vears (ee Note 19).
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PRINCIPAL INVESTMENTS

AR EL AL

SURSICIARY UNDIRTAKINGS |

Prpseal subadary nndderralings are aff whellp-eveed diect subsidianes exsopt where mdisated

Ab Miles Travel Promotions Ll
{87 per sent of ordinary shawes ouneil}
Bedford Associates [ne

fa subsidiary voderiaking of Bitdir Avgrisition Corp fng)

BritAir Acquisition Corp Inc

Huish Afrways Associated Companies Led
British Airwidys Australia (Hotding) Pry Lud
British Airways Capital Lud

(89 per cent of founders' shares ouned)

Dritish Airways Finance BV

Bhitish Airways Holidays Ltd

Caledonian Airways Lid

Chartridge Centre Lid

Speedbind Insurince Co Ltd

Travel Automation Services Lid (trading as Galifeo 17K)

ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

Adr Russia

Concorde International Travel Py Lud
Deutsche BA Laftfahigesellschaft mbH
Euro-=Hub Bimingham) Lid

G B Airways (Holdings) Ltd

'The Galileo Company Lid

World Aviaticn Systems (Australia) Pry Ltd

TRADE INVESTMENTS

Covia Partnesship

Hogg Rabinson ple

Ruby Aircraft Leasing and ‘Trading Led
Sapphire Ancralt Leasing and Trading Ltd
The Plimsoll Line Limited

Peroeniage
¢f equity
ouned

31
50
49
2
49
X
50

Prrzenfage
of equity
prurred

1.0
124
9.3
19.3
49.9

£ ettty of

proTg g wad

Prinapd atacas precpalopotes
Atline marketing Lnglied
Speaialur computer reservations saftware 54
Holdimg company US4
Airhne managenient seovices England
Holding company Ausiralia
Atrline finance Jersey
Aitline finance Netherlands
Package holidays England
Aitline operations Englamd
Adrline training services England
Aitline insurance Bermuda
Computer reservations sy.teni England
Cowsairy of

auerporation

)’. and prngpal

Pandpal stwanes i operatins
Airline operations Rugsia
Airline marketing Anestralia
Aitline opentions Cennany
Airpore rerminal services England
Airline holding company Jemey
Contputer reservations systems England
Aurline marketing Avestrafia
Coummry of

taorperation

ad prnapal

Prngpal aitnelties uperuang
Computer reservaions systems UsA
Travel, transport and financial services Englind
Aircraft leasing Sngland
Aircrafl leasing Finpland
Aidine bolding company Ergland

{Holdng company of Brymon Avicnan Ltd and Bimingham Luropean
Ainpaps Lid, The investment is cquivalent to 14 per ient of the votng rights},
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UNITED STATES GENERALLY ACCEPTED

¢

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (US GAAP) INFORMATION

The finanaad stitements are pregaved i acaordariie it aiamnmgg panesples generally acicpted i the Tmited Kingdon sy doe:
i gentaan vespests from those generally wicepled w the Uited States The sigeflant diffioncs ate dessmbed bebne

Dferred taxanon Bnsh Airways provides for deferred taxation inng the habaluy method on al) matenal anung
differences to the extent that it 1s probable that the habslities wall erystallise in the foreseeable future Under US GAAD.
as set otk in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 96 (FAS 96), deferred taxation s penerally pronaded on
a full habiliry bass.

Condwall  British Awrways writes o’ goodwill ansing on consehdaton directly agamst retamed eamings. Under
US GAAR, goodwill ansing on consohdation is amuorused over its useful e, For the purposes of determuning the
differences lietween UK GAAD and US GAAP, the expected usefil bife of goadwill bas been taken to b 40 yvears

Property aid fleet valuation - Under US GAAP tangble msets must be stated at cost Jess accumudated depreenuon m the
financial statements, The valuation of properues ae 31 March 1984 and fleet at 31 March 1988 incorporated by Brtsh
Asrways i its financial statements would not therefore have been meluded in finanzial statesents prepared in
accordance with US GAAP and the subsequent charges for depreciation would have been comrespondingly Jower,
When such assets are sold, however, any revaluation surlus thus realised would Le reflecied mincome,

Prrchase acounting - Under US GAAP, as set unit in FAS 96, a deferred tax liabiluy is recognised for the tax effects of
differences beeween the assigned far vatues and ex bases of asets acquired, whereas under UK GAAP no such Liabibty
is recogniscd. As a result of recogmisimg such a deferred tax hability the amount of goodwill ansing on consohidaton
increases correspondingly, Under US GAAD the deferred tax hability would be amortised over the sanie penod as the
assets to which it relates.

Fumand exchange contracts - Under US GAAP the national gain or loss arising on the transhtion of certan outstanding
foreipm curreney forward exchange conmacts at each balince sheet date, at the eates of exchange ruling at that date,
would have been included in the determination of net income, Britishh Awways and its associated undertakings do not
take account of such notional gains and losses,

Farcigu currency translation  The cost of certin areraft and fixed asser investiments which have been financed wholly or
in part by loans, finance leases and hire purchase arrangements in foreign currency, are adjusted ro take account of e
stezling cost of related repayments dunng the year and the translation of outstanding liabiliues on such foreign corrency
borrawings at the year end rae of exchange, or the appropriate forward rate where Halshues have heen covered
forward, In the case of aireraft, a depreciation charge 18 computed on sach rranshied amourds and the adjusuments 1o
accumulated depreciation ax the beginnimg of the year are taken to retained eamings . This acconnung treathent 15
adopred m order to reflect the stering cost to Bnush Airways ofits investment in such assers and as a tesult o match
the aircraft depreciation charge more accurately with revenue. Under US GAAP, the cxehange adjustments nnade to
the cost of aireraflt and fixed assct investments are required to be treated as exchange gains or Josses andd meluded 1 the
ditermipation of net income, The cost of these assers wonld be fixed in pounds sterling o the rate of exclange rulbing
ac the date of che oniginal acquisttion, lease or lure purchase.

Penston costs - For the purposes of the reconerliation overeal, Bratish Ainways adopted the provisions of FAS 87
“Employers' Accounung for Pensions™ as from 1 Apnl 1989 m respect of the Group's princapal pensien plans, the
Awways Penston Scheme (APS) and the New Asrways Pension Scheme NAPS), Under FAS 87, the cost of provading
peusions 15 attnbuted to penods of service n accordanee with the benefit formulae underlying the pension plans.

The resuleamt projected benefit obhganon 1s mached against the curvenc value of the underdying plan assets and
unrecognised actuanal gams and losses iy detemmning e pesion coy o credit for the year, ‘The net penadic pension
cotts for these plans {or the year ended 31 March 1992 amounted 15 £52 nuihon (191: £48 nidlion) under UK
GAAD campared wath an esumated cost of £113 nuflion {1991: credit of £8 million) wnder FAS 87. The resltant
mcrease m operatng costs of £o1 mihon (1991: reduction of £56 milhon), net of related deferred tax of £20 millien
(1991: £18 nulhon), weuld reduce net income umder US GAADR by £41 nullion (1991 fucrease of £38 nudliond,
and the decrease would be reflected in the consolidated balance sheet as a deduction from acerued pension cous

At 31 March 1991, an adpusunent of £79 mlhan was made to recognue the extent 10 which the actuanal present
value of accumulated benefic obliganions at M December 1990 exceeded the Sir value of the Schenie’s assets at that
date The addisonal habiliry of £191 million was recogaised at 31 March 1991 ind offset by the unrecogmsed priog
service vost of L1000 million, which served as an intangble aset, and the net peiodie pension cost of £12 miflion
recognised over the three months, As the fuie value of the Schemie's asec exceeded the aconmulated benefit abliganon
3 31 December 1991, the sntangible assee of £100 nilbon and the additiomal hability of £17% mulhon a8 recogprsed at
31 March 1991 has been woitten back to sharcholders” funds at 31 Marels 1992,

Catng on sale and feascbade transactions  Gains atiang on sale and leaseback tansacuons are recoprused as parg of meome
to the extent that the sale proceeds do not exceed the fir value of the aireraft concerned. Gams ansing on the poruon
of the sale proceeds which exeeed the fur value are deferred and amortised over the minmuan Jease term. Under US
GAAP, the total gains, mcduding iy realned revalauon gans, woukl be defervedd 1 full and amorused aver the
i lease term.

Eatraordinary sem ‘The profic on sale of the enpmie vverbaul basmess reported as an 'Bxtraordmary lteny' would have
been dealt with as 5 g on sale of 3 decontnued operation under US GAAP.

The estimated effect of the sgmificant adjurstments 10 et tcone avid 1o starchelders” equity whidt wendd be vequired if U8 (44D
wese 0 be applied gutead of sty prngles generally anepred w the UK are sommearesed o Pages 32 wnd 11
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NET INCGOME UNDER US GAAP

Foackecoms dwd Yaa'y bur”

1992 R 1992 W |
Lm pm tm i 1
Pentit on erdary activities abter faxation 255 yg 444 1he 1‘
Extnaonimary wem 140 243 ‘
Profit for the year as reported 1n the 1
Group protic and loss account 395 9% 687 163 !
Estmuated adjustinents: \
Depreciation
Croodal! (9) %1 {15} 15§
Fleet 29 15 50 n1
Propenty 1 2 2 3
Pension costs {61) 56 {196) U
Exchange gains/ flosses) |
Ansing on translation of @st of aircraft {7 {25} (12) {13} 1
Relnmg to revaluation of joniard exihange eontracts (n 3 {2) 5
Artcing on transhacion ¢f wvesiments 1 2 2 3 |
Surplus on disposal of augible fixed assets and ynvesunems o
Arising on dhsposal of revalied aorggt 2 19 R} 33 |
Ansing on sale and leaseback tramsactions 3 (1) (5} 117
Deterred taxation ~{63) {3t} {110} {54 |
(i) 42 (193) Pk
Esuntated net incone as adjusted to geord vith US GAAD 284 137 494 238 ‘1
R
Ansing from: ,
Clontinuing openaiions 44 137 25t 218 |
G ont sale of discontmmned operatins 140 243 ‘
284 137 194 238 . (
Pence Dene Cents it !
Net mcome per Qrdmacy Share as so adjusted |
Pruniery « imcome front continaiing operations 19.9 19.0 34.6 3.1
= gaint on sale of dhscontiuneed opcrations 19.4 33.8
39.3 9.0 68.4 SN j
Fully diluted - wscome from comtrmnng operattons 18.8 18.0 32.7 2.3 |
« gt o safe of discontned operations 15.4 26.8 |
3.2 5o 59.5 313 |
Net sneome per Amencan Depostsry hare a5 so adpusted j
Promary - nicome from iontinuing opesatons 199 190 346 331
« gan on sale of slsiennnvied operations 194 338 |
33 191 GB4 1i} .
Faelly dilused = icome frane wontinaing eperaions 188 Isa a7 3
a gam on ale of dscomtmined cporatim [54 263
342 180 595 ATR '

Tndaton rate. L1528804 y 1= 8174
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SHARTHOLDERS EQUITY UNDER US GAAD

G ONT RN an

e
1992 T ro)
Lm dm Sm 3]
Shareholdees’ ety ax seponed i the comeldated Bbinee sheet 1,284 458 2,234 1.667
Esumated wdyustmenes,
Intangsble wssets
Croadhedlt 335 i 583 591
Pensiony iy 4
Tangilse assets
Heet (128) (152 (222) (264
Property (12} {13} 215 (AR
Investmients 1 2
" Current assers
Pension wast prepayments 65 126 113 219
‘ Bferred gitas on_Jonvard exdiinge contcts 1 2
Current lubalitics
~ Proposed dundend 53 At 92 76
o Defered income « sule and feasehack {19} (151 (33) {26}
utimenn pension hability (179 (31h
Lobg-tenn habdities
Defered income ~ sule and leaseback 14) {45) an {78}
Provisions {or habilicies and charges
Deferred taxation {346) (283} (602) {492)
(95) {76 {165) 132
Esumated sharcholders' equary as adjusted to
accord wath US GAAP 1,189 882 2,009 1,535

Translation vate L1=$1.74 £1=2 81,74
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARIES

Pttt g cmannd 0 Mol [e

GROUD PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

1994 feny it e 1992 ey 1992
im Am At 2o £im ] i
Tumover ARG 4237 LW 497 5,224 | R4wr 9,090
Operaung expendiuare tL520) (3,020 45 7Ty (4,880 E, ikl (B9T)
Operating surplus 236 RED) [LE] 17 344 2t 599
Onher imeome and charges (14 2 18 112 29 ' 50
Net iterest pavable 3 (70 {574 29 (88) (3th (153}
Protit belore exceptional wem ayd laxaton 228 268 EEN) 250 285 43§ 496
Exceprional item {1204 (209
Profit on ordmary acuvities belore taxation 228 268 J45 1 285 2246 496
Taxation and minonty interests {7 193 {97} (34 (R11)] ihly (52)
Profic before extmordinary swom 151 175 246 vy 255 165 144
Exuaordinary wwem 140 243
Profit after extraordimary item 151 175 246 95 395 145 £87
Dividends {50) {54) {64) {64 (74) tHi {129
Retaned profit for the year 1M 1y 182 EY 321 54 558

Translation rate, I=§1.74 $1.74

- GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF GROUP TURNOVER AND QPERATING SURPPLUS

Hy area of devtimaion

A mifin 198% 198y ivm L350 1992
TURMOVER

Europe 1,609 1,622 1,82% 1,950 2,064
The Americas L1750 L3 La12 Lels 1,645
Afna 237 33 LT

Afnca, Middle East and Indian sub-continent Syt 6us
Muddle East, Far East and Australasia vis 248 1,038 .
Far East and Australasia 782 B50

3756 4257 4,838 4,937 5,224

OQPERATING SURPLUS/(NETICIT)

Europe 6 16 KJ Iy 20

The Amencas 13} HE 249 123 119

Adrka a7 49 !

Alnea, Maddle East amd Inidhan sub-continent 13 119

Muddle East, Far East aad Australana 1 vl 80

Far Eagt and Australasia 41 86
236 31 384 167 344

The Directors have decaded to change the previous analyns of geograplucal segments o brng them
mto boe with Bansh Ainways operational management stracture and this i reffected i the
two years ended 31 March 1992 10 the above table,

34 Bridoh Ainvays M Annast Repoa 8 A sonals {941 92




GROUP BALANCE SHEET

sl 198X 1989 190 191 132
Fixed asers . L PR o
Tangible aisers 21651 2630 0 2ded 1434 3dn
Investinents i A0, 1t HE I i 9,
2,205 R 2,50 1,242 3,565
Chrrent assets 901 % i ef6| | 1,208 5 1,057 l.667‘;"
Creditors: antounits falbiig due withm one year b (AT {4, 748h ' (i,.?i‘c‘ag; ' (1,600 1 (1,706
Net eurrent *abilings {370 (532 {521y 1543 19
Toal assets less curcent abilies 1,633 [, 746 2,051 2,499 3,546
Creditors: amounes Hlling due atter more
than one year (851 (896) {75%) (1,366) {1,888)
Peavisions for liabilines and charges (150 (1tih {64 [AR]] (54)
634 750 1,232 1,278 1,604
Caputal and reserves
Called up share copital 189 180 180 &0 182
Reserves 453 569 732 778 1,102
Sharcholders’ equaey 633 749 912 Y58 1,284
Converuble Capital Bonds 2005 320 20 320
Mmority mterests ! 1
634 750 1,232 1,278 1,004
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARIBS oo

bl w ant e R A A et

GROUP CASH ELOW STATEMI NI

4 nten 1v8x vy 5% Iew 1992
Net cadt mBow from operatng atmvines AR 541 B 296 591

Returns on mnvestents and servicng of finetee |

Intevest recowed : 21, - /. 6 49

Interest pasd on bank and ather oany g 13 AT X9 Led] (98)
Interest paid on finance Ieses and . : } o

Ire punhaic arangemennts * LTI t2h {221 RTINS £53)
Divudends seicived fron inpe-tments ! 2. i - i 1

Dundends vard NI a0 e iy 8
Net cash outlow froms retarms on mvestingents

and servicing of Bnance fath {118 136) 121 {166)
Taxation

UK csporanon tax pad Fin) {78} (944 {09} {1}

Inveating activaties

Prrchase of tangible fixed assett ) !4?6)75 § {638y : oy 13 ¢ (539).
Refind of pragress payments iyl 43 i 268 | ; 18914 158
Purchase of investinents ; P 79 (I8 (1615 n.
Purchase of subsidiary nndertakangs F (208)} § . H}j ; (5 %
Sale of tangible ficed assets and suvestinents : iy 43¢ : 157 .3 268" 4 90 |
Sale of businiess ’ b ) A I 7T
, N & AUV B
Net cash outflow from investing acuvitiee 669 el 210 25 T
Net eash milow/(outflowi meludimg i reases
m short-term bank deposits, before finanang {213 (286} 285 311 390
Increase n short-teem bank depossyy (334)
Net cash intiow/{outflow) byfore finanging (3{1; {2861 285 {3ty 56
Finaneang
Changges 1 borrowings . V. CL . IR T T
Bant: and other loans rased M 4140 THY 546 : 300 ¢
Bank aud otfer loans repand ¢ 42550 {188 (66l | ALSTH {213),
Fananmee Jeases and bure purdase ‘ I Py . ;
armangempns reposd ) P, T )}
203 213 {351y n2 120
Changes m share capal - . . R
Tasue of ordiary share wpital under ’ - i ! .
Ewnployee Share €prior: Sihemes : . { ; 2
Share promivn recowved . ‘ b it 9,
' A At
Convernble Capital Bonds isucd ‘f d20 i T
€osts associated with Convernble Capstal ' o i
Bonids rsue ‘ ; . {1t .
) R
Net csh inflow/Aoudlow) trom finanang Jo3 21 -ty 10 131
Inureasefidecteased mcash and cash equivalents tth 7 ¥ M5 F2tN; 187
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OPERATING STATISTIOS

Bt boceg omfn S W il ad,

SCHEDULED SERVICHES 1viK 198y L L] w2
Trafl and capa,y
Revenue passenger km {RUK) (i) A% 123 §2, 795 a1.91% 64,714 65,896
Avathble seat ki (ASK) (1) 69,97 82,984 86,601 92,399 93,877
Passenger load facior (4 0.2 49.6 N3 Tl 70.2
Cargo tonne km (CTK) {m} 1,793 2,349 2,400 2463 2,510
Total revenue tonne km (WTK) (m) 6,145 2,630 8,240 8,041 8,778

, Total available tanve km (AT (i) 0427 11,404 12,035 12,924 13,379
Qverall load factoe (1 67.3 67 0 a8y 66 & (K
Passengers carned (HHOW) 20,169 22,578 23,671 24,243 I3 158
Tounes of cargo carmed ((K) ot 459 198 f6 #33

! Franaal

} Passenger revenue pee RPK (p) 5.4 ag bod 6.5 5
Cargo revenue per CTK {p) 16.0 153 16.2 15.3 15.8
Avenage fuel price (US ceas/US gallon) 63.8 602 69.7 89.7 70.9
Operations
Unduplicated route km {UtHi) 692 677 685 665 584
Puncruality (% within 15 nunutes) 80 72 72 3 "
Regulanty (%3 99.2 990 98.9 987 99.2

GROUP OPERATIONS

traduding Caledaman Ayt Led

Total revenuc tonne ki (RTK) (m) 6,895 8,002 8,627 8,979 9,111
Toral available tonne kin (ATK}) fin) 10,083 11,568 12,945 13,351 13,818
Passengers carrzed (U000 23,210 24,603 25,238 25,587 25,422
Average number of employees 13,909 50,204 52,054 54,427 50,409
RTKs per employee (00t 156 8 1594 165.7 f65.0 180L7
ATHs per employee (800} 229.3 236 4 2191 2453 2741
Arrcealt m serace at year end 197 211 224 230 230
Asrenraft alisatron (avenage hours per areraft peranna-y 2,891 2,884 2,-87 2,661 2,708
Revenue arceaft km (g 22 164 it asp %0
Revenue thghts (0000 234 269 a7 s 261
Total traffic revennte per RTK {p) 3.0 187 Shd 0.5 52.6
Total traffic revenue per ATK (p) J2 8 e 35 340 347
Net operanng expenditure pee ATK (p) s k) F2.8 127 3.2
Break-¢even overnll load fictor o) 035 ol.6 6313 64 8 612
St

U Bl misshar of oeplypeeron abe famp ot 1 Apnd 15 020 4845147 Apad 1991 S301Y;

& Az duoed i Neie § aggrimd mportngt of she mucunts | ad Corzup a gt ant conndined ta bt centied ceund e sline busovest
Averige mimar clemplspee A LRs por onplagie cnd vet opessingg expenditinse pir ATK anc e expreased en 9 Group bis and iemper:He
prect per s e e been odnected acodgly
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ARCRAET FLEET

Calabomcinton wig g

Soomhe om0 K8 Wl £

A d £ Moy
hiwpenfived edom vl Ot BT fregs Aoy
feppelers  opeatng  cpaning Futum €bei o L T [wed
ity | lracey fraa e didisse, o ™ Can grneipa ey

Comcorde 7 7 0,024 4 153
Boeing T47-100 {5 15 S 3467 W
Boeing 2472440 i1 5 16 RS0,  4.287 13
Boding TH7-40 G 13 22 38 28 957 J01 1Kol
Yeany 777 15 15
Luckheed ToStar 1, 50 and UM 5 1 [ 8971 1,495 )
Toekheed "TnStar 200 .41 2,403
MeDonnell Douglas DCIG-30 O 2 8 38158 4,770 133
Boung 767-3110 iNotr 24 6 0 16 i U MIE6 307 1.5
Boemg 737200 iNete B 36 ] 37 3 2 95561 2511 62
Anbus A320 1 ' 10 3045 2uM K
Booing ~37-2tn) Note 4t 23 18 41 96,322 27252 101
Raging 737300 1Nute 51 . B.ON9 2,838
Boomg 737-408) Nt 6 4 4 1} 14 16 B60 2368 0.3
BAC 1-11=500 &4 i 48575 1,657 236
BAe ATP 12 1 13 1 6w 1,713 an
HS 738 ‘ 2 2 WO 1400 164
Hired arreraft 1,776
Total 161 Ol 3 230 82 76 620,872 2,708 10.1
Mater

1 Dxadudis vl Leakheed TnSian siun of windt have boen sub leescdt and secen BACY B[ Is sseed down
2 dxidudes one Boctng 67 N sheze intecduiteon iy sene s defned unnd Apol 1992
¥ Dacludee mvo Beang ™7 Mt wheds aze borv suk leased Seimngtt Bave been donvetof o funtnas lesses Jem exemdible
crenasiniy feuses danng the durd guarer
¥ {alude oy Bocns T17 2005 b Jeaced o €8 Sy
§ Dududer now Boeiry ™37 Wivh ont chaat-tine fedoe wesad o at 13 Mandy 1992 and subeguendy rsomed f ouvers
fo Lo it elovers cameat 14 tarre deliorry will be the Bocina ™ » T80 raramt sabregeens ifore dilis enes may be the < MHD, 460 oo« S1kk vandnt
T oOpernechnd tneaned delivog pedteon b Cansaar Rega! fo sl
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GENHERAL INFORMATION

GLOSSARY

40

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year el Mk 1990
Atmual gerieral pecting 1 July 1992
199192 final divtdend pavable &f luly 199
ANNOUNCEMENT OF 1992-93 IESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Fiest quarter results to 30 June 1992 August 1992
Second quarter results to M Seprember 1992 November 1992
Intenm divadend November 1992 fpayable Janwary 1993
Thind quarcer results to 31 December 1992 Fehmary 1993
Prelmninary announcement mid May 1993
Report and Acconnts Jone 1993
Final divdend June 1993 (payatle fuly 1993}

DUTSIDE ADVISERS
(ompany Registrrs: Barelays Registrars, PO Box 34, Nogthwich, Cheshire, CW9 7D
ADR Depositary: Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, 60 Wall Street, New York, NY 10260-0060

UNSOLICITED MAIL

Britith Airways is obliged by Law to make ws share register avalabile on reqjuest to other orgamsauons who may then
wic it a5 3 maihog hist. This may cesudt in your receiviag unsolicited rail, I you wish to limit the receipt of unsoljcited
muail you may do so by writing to the Madng Preference Service, an mdependent organisation, whose services are free
to you. Once your name and address have been added to its records, w will advise the conipanies and other bodies
hich support the gervice that you ne longer wish to receive unsalicited il

IFyou would like maore dewils please wnite to: The Mailing Prefercnie Service, FREEPQST 22, Londen WVIE TEZ,
Brush Airways asks orgamsacions which obtamn is register to suppuort tlis service,

Revenue Passengee Kilomsetres tRPEY * he produet of passengers carncdangd the distance over which they are carned,
A .
Available Seat Filomenes £ 455): The product of seatt offered for sate and the dianee aver which they are carried,

. X L
Reremic Tonne Kdometres (RTRY The product of revenue 1oad in tonnes and the distanétwscar which s sarried,

Available Tosne Kelometnes (AT } ‘The measure of tansport prosduction. The available tonne kilometrelpraduced by 2
flight are the capacaty for pavload of the arcraft measurd m wnnes (2,2041), muluplied by the distance fown,

Load Feitor The percentage relationship of revenue foad camed to capacity provided, The overalf load fictor relates
RIK to ATK. The passunger foad fictor zelates ILPK o ASK,

Break-evens Load Factor, 'The load frctor regired to cquate <cheduled srailic revenue with operatuig Costs, asstitting that

the operaung surphus of companie: heensed 1o operate schedoled services is atetured entieely to those services,
Puitality. The pereca,ape of lights depaiog witin 15 nunutes of schodule,

Regulanty: The percentage of thghts conpleted ro ighes scheduled, excluding Aights cancelied for commeresal Leasons
JATA  International Air Transport Associztun.

1CA0 International Civil Avtation Organisation,

Bereh chnways P Avndd Repoar U Aty 1998 602




BRITISH AIRWAYS TODAY

The world's fargest wternational paseager airline, and the eighth largest in the world m'v.nll

o

A scheduled route network covering some 150 destinations in 70 countries, serving more
Jeading international matkets than any other airline, g

A home base at London, operating out of Garwick and Heachrow,
the largest intemational airport 1n the world.

Leading air travel brands, including Concorde, First Class, Club World,
Club Europe, World Traveller, Euro Traveller and Super Shuttle.

One of the largest and most efficient fleets in the world, with
230 aircraft in service and orders and options for 150 more,

Taking off every two minutes, with 261,000 flights last year carrying 3 total of .
25 million passengers and 500,000 tonnes of cargo. >

' . Av unpanallcled pedigree, dating back to the binth of the air travel industry, with ity
pn.dcccssor airline Aircraft Teansport and Travel launching the world’s first daily & ,
-0 e o intermarional scheditled air servies in 1919, Lo ok
e Commuud to quality, with every one of its 50,000 staff participating in its new ’

customer service programme, Winning for Customers. J .

OUR MISSION

To be the best and muost successful company in the airline industry. o . L

e

OUR GOALS

Safe and Sccure:
To be a safe and secure airine,

anncxally Strong:
To deliver a strong and consistent financial performance.

Global Leader:
To secure a leading share of atr travel business worldw;dc wuh
a significant presence in all major geographical markets.

i Service and Value:
To provide uverall superior service and good value far money
in cvery market seginent in which wecompete,

-

Customer Driven:
Ta excal in anticipating and guickly tespanding
to customer nieeds and competitor activity. u

Good Employer: .
To sustain 2 working envitonment thac attracts, tecains and develops ‘
conmmitted employees who share in the success of the corpany,

Good Neighbour:
Ta be a good neighbour, concered for the
coramunity and the environment,




SHARFHULNDEPR INFORMATION AND DIRECTORS® INVLRESTS

SEARFEIGH 1R Ry

Bmertgye ol W] ke

o ot b ey AR § Larhann o sk ey PN [N

1~ §,iu0 5 59 1 b idualy R 31 120

LAHIY = S 0 an ulys}] Nomunee companics f g i B

B - 10,000 [Thet] i lssurance Lompames Hul an

LRIt - B0 01y 1.57 Banks (LB T] 152

SHILO RS EIXEEY (TEILY 1.43 Pension lnnds i TR

THOUGL - 250,000 w7 447 Other comporate holders A4 4 &
Q30T - SH 105 6 30
A0000H = 750,000 0.4 299
2RO -~ 1,000,050 i A0
rver LUEH G0N Ll 6770

U0 100,50 JERLA & ELEN]

The fotlowing have holdings m the Company i excess of'3 per cent of the weal shares ssued-

Penentage

of tharchaldeng

Templeton vestment Management Limited 5.53

Fidelity lnvestment, 4.52

Schroder lnvestment Managenient 390

Morgan CGuaranty Trust CGompany of New York, the Company’s ADIX Deposiary. has 2 non<beneficial spterest in
17.68 per cent of the shares i the mame of Guananty Nommnees Lunited. Brosh Airnways i not aware of any ocher

miterest m ats shares of three per cent or more,

DIRECTORS® INTERESTS

AL Mank 1992 Batck Awaay: B

Brtih Aevays Caperal 124

teritnble
L apttal
Bends

£ Whimary Sharey (hrcdinary Shres 1 ptiony Uptwens
subyead 12 [IOVIA A Lacautive and SAYL kel
LRSI (P rredin sy Share Sk dnng yrar

31 March FApnd 31 Marche Tl 3 March 1 Apnl

1992 141 1992 191t 1992 9%
Lord King 105,000 35,084 - Hea o 296,800 843,310 556,521
Sir Colin Marshall 25,836 25,520 - dle 485,436 710,155 224,719
Sir Michael Angas 3000 oo - - - . -
R § Ayluigre 4,459 485 744 LTIS 215,261 334,224 187,938
1T M Stevens 5,050 5,650 3,403 3403 337,254 337,254 “
A M Davies 5,060 5,040 - - - - -
Captan € A Banes 7,983 & 4,723 1,875 69,976 208,134 135,692
Sir Branos Kentedy 5,250 5,250 1,860 1860 166,666 (66,666 -
Flen Chazles Pace 11 10,000 1,0/ * - - - - -
Lond Whiee - - - - - - -

3 March 1 Apnd
1992 991
13,332 131,312
1L 17 4004
1,333 1,333

109 109
2,221 227
644 odd

1,421 1,413

- -

171,638 23,280 10,730 14,488 1,571,402 2,609,963 1,104,870

an364  30.2%

* LR Amzncan Prgeatiny Rearpts
S8Ryt s appended 0 g Boaed e W Deaomber 12491

The Dires tard” miterests ser out above are i cach case bunetienl The opuons under the Execunve Share Option anid
Savings Relawed Share Opuon Schemes are st pmees varving between 135p and 210p per shate. No Director has any
benefival meerest in shares i any subsidianes o1 the Company other than those shown above w the 975 per cont
Convertible Capial Bonds 2005 m Bntsh Airways Capatal Limaed “Thiere have been no changes i the

smiterests ser ont above bevween the en §of the nancal year and 18 May 1992

Btk Garweys L sl 83008 Laranrs 1991 99
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